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A, Survey Methodology

East Grove Street, Bloomington, Illinois

Survey Methodology

The érchitectﬁral and historicél sﬁrvey of the 200 throﬁgh 900
blocks of East Gfove Street, Bloomington was divided into three éreas:
(1) compilation of physicél déta; (2) compilation of historical daté;
(3).déta synthesis. Physical data survey forms were completed and
photogréphs taken for each structure within the boﬁndaries. These are
filed by'cﬁrrent street address.

The following sources were consulted to establish a physical
reference for the structures: 1867 Birdseye View, 1873 Birdseye View,
1895 McLean County Plat, 1901, 1907, 1957 Sanborn Insurance Maps and
the series of Illustrated Books of Bloomingtoun déting 1889, 1896, 1904,
and 1907. Notes and copies from these sources were entered into the
street address file.

Historical data was compiled starting with street indexes of the
City of Bloomington, those searched were 1855 through 1920. This
yielded probable original owner and/or import#nt personages associated
with the structﬁres. This list was then referenced with évailable
newspaper and biographical indices. Finally a general search was made
of relevént papers held 5? the McLean County Historical Society. All

appropriate data was then added to the street address file.




B. Historical Context

The éreé of East Grove street sﬁrveyed contains within it sites
and structures associated with the formétion of the City of Blooming-
ton énd its development ﬁp to the beginning of this centﬁry; The
primary focus of the distriect is of é residentiél street closely
éssociéted with the céntral business district. As John Jaeckle has
noted with his sméll town'geography importént transportétion corridors
were élso the homé showpléce‘streets in fhe 19th centﬁry. At the eést
end of the district sfood the Illinois Central Railroad passenger
station and at the west end stood the central business district. Grove
street was a well maintained and well traveled corridor.

In 1829 James Allin bﬁilt-a double pen log cabin at the site of
the McBarnes Bﬁilding (201 E. Grove). At that time it wés the north-
ern edge of Blooming Grove and 1oc;l tradition maintains that the area
surveyed, Grove street, represents the northernmost edge of that grove,

In 1831 the town of Bloomington was founded by Allin to serve as
the County seat of McLean County. This landlocked county and its county
seats history is a story of failures associated with the national
economic scene and success mostly attributable to promoters of the
locale who saw that comﬁunity growth was intertwined with personal
economic sﬁccess.

Up to the time of the arrival of’ﬁhe railroads Grove street was
essentially nonexistent beyond the 400 block, In-1853 when the
Illinois Central Railroad arrived it became a desirable residential
street, This was dﬁe to the fact that efforts were made to keep it
passable for longer periods of the year.

It was the railroads and Bloomingtoun's ability to attréct more

thén one réilroad through the area that made the city prosper and




¢. Tabulation of Results

The éreé“sﬁrveyed comprised those strﬁctﬁres on the south side
énd fécing Groﬁe Street on the two hundred and three hundred blocks,
those structures fécing Grove Street on the north énd south sides on
the four, fi%e, six, seven, eight, énd nine hundred blocks; This area
is less than one sqﬁére mile and contéins 68 principle strﬁctﬁres;

Of these strﬁctﬁres those on the two hﬁndred throﬁgh seven hﬁndred
blocks or 56 structures in total were viewed to constitute a coherent
whole and therefore merit consideration as a Natiomnal Register of
Historic Places Distriect. To this end a nomination has been prepared
and steps are being taken to achieve this status.

Becaﬁse of the fragile and endangered status of the érea studied,
particﬁlarly the two hundred through seven hﬁndred blocks this surfeyor
recommends that the area be rezoned S-4 (Cultural and Historic). With-
out this protection and incentive to potential residents who wish to
preserﬁe historic buildings it is doubt ful whether the district will
survive in any recognizable mannewx into the 2lst century. It is also
recommended that the individual structural narratives prepared on each
structﬁre be distributed to the owners and residents of those structures.
The survey should also be placed on file at the Bloomington Pﬁblic

Library.




B, Page 2

which is élso reflected in the occupation of mény people 1i;ing on
Gro§e street, "By 1900 éboﬁt ZbZ of the hoﬁses were occﬁpied by people
in the wholeséle trade;. Another lérge percentége wés occﬁpied by
retired farmers. Bldomington serving és a transportation hub énd it
being centered in the fertile black soil cornbelt insured economic
prosperity for enoﬁgh people to create the kind of neighborhood
sﬁrveyed.

The decline in the district in the years following World War II
are éttributable to the desire for smaller and more managable hoﬁses

and the resulting ownership of the structures by absentee landlords.




D, Previous Surveys

Structures in tth district have been noted in three preeioes
sﬁreeys. In the Illinois Department of Conservatlon 8 Inventory of
Historic Lendmarks in McLean County, prepared December, 1973, four
strucéeres were noted in the boundary of this sﬁrvey of East Grove
Street, they ere: the McBernes Memorial Beilding ML—H—ég The Oaks
ML-H—lZ; Weldon/Fenk House ML-H-13; Jﬁdge Reeben Benjemin Hoese
ML#H;IA (address incorrect in 1973 report).

Some strectﬁres were noted in the 1974 Illinois Depertment of
Conservetion Inventory of Historic Structures. They are 303, 409, 421,
507, 510, 604, and 701 E. Grove. |

This principle investigator of this survey wrote a walking tour
of this district in71979. He noted the following to be of historicel
'end/or architectural merit: McBarnes Beilding, The Oeks, Thornton
Motors, Dr. Moore house, Weldon/Funk house, Grldley house, Roesh house;

507 E. Grove, Benjamin house, Messing house, Wilecox house and Cox house‘




E. Data Gaps

The most significént dété gaps in this sﬁrvey and those proceed~-
ing it are the in;bility of sur%eyors to géin informétion concerning
the interior, strﬁctﬁre, arrangement and detailing of the ﬁuildings
sur&eyed.

The art history blas inherent in the analy31s of a bulldlng based
upon ihs facade can Only be overcome by inspection of those salient
interior features. In a district which is controlled by 10c51 ordin-
énce the ébility of filling a déta gap over time is possible; It is
not possible to gather the information at low cost in any other way.
It is the belief of this sﬁrveyor, however, that thrdﬁgh the preserva-

tion of the structure, some effort can be made 1n the future to gather

lnformatlon concerning these now identified resources.




F. Problems of Implementation

No proﬁlems were experienced in the implementétion of the sﬁrvey.
There were proﬁlems with QtiLizing volﬁnteer services. The n;tﬁre of
this type of work force ig unpredictable and on occasion work héd to
be redone in the intexest of éccﬁracy. The extension reqﬁested énd

granted for completion was more closely tied to delay in notification

to proceed (April, 1985) than in difficulty in procedure,




G. Promotional Activity

No promotional activities were undertaken as part of this survey,

Promotional activities including public meetings will be an integral

part of the implementation of the survey results,




I. Inventory Form

GROVE STREET SURVEY

Address | Historic Name_

Quner Date

Owner's Address Present Use

Sidwell #

Additional Owners on back Legal Description '
Contributing Non-Contributing .

et

Representation in Previous Survey

\Bib]iography and Notes

!
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1. Factual [

2. Es{imams‘ l

2 ARCHITECT QR BUILDER:

Unknown -

3. HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE

None: ]

) Unknown [ |

Personagse of Historleal Importanca

Locai[:] Provlncial[___]_ﬂ Natfonal{:]_

Building signiiicant in political, mifiary, social,
sconomic, cultural, or refiglous history.

Locai[_] Provincial __] National [ 1

Evant of Hislorical Importance

tosal[ ] Pprovinctal [ | Natlonal ]

Other

Nama of parsanage or event

4. PRESENT USE

{1} Resldentiai

1. Single Dwealling
2. Bouble Dwelling
A Mullipls Dwalting
4, Hotal ot an

8 tnstitutional Housing

EReILL

e S

{2) Social and Recreational
1. Clubor Lodge
2. Waellara Group Facuity
A, Non-Athistic Recteation
4, Parilcipant sporl and Athielic
§, Other

(3) Educationai

1. Scheol

2. Colisge and Liniveryity
3, Libiary

4. Research Establishment
5. Othet

Secondary { |

i

{4) Exhibition, Audition, and Spectacle

1. Museum
2. Planstariuen

3. Auditerium
4, Thealer or Clnema

&, Exposition
§. Stadium or Grandsland
7. Other-

(5) Administrative, Professionai,

Financial

. Office

2. Bank

3. Eachange

4 CommercialLan

5. Qegarirzation Quarters
6. Othef

{6} Mercantile
1, Genarai Retalt Store
2. Special Store or Shop
3. Mail Order Houss
4. Market
&, Wholesals Stors
4. Dlspiay Room
7. Shopping Canire
4 Slorage
9. Other

(7) Industrial & Mfg.
1. Factory or Plant
2 Slorage
2. Sacvics
4, Wil .
5. Furnzce and Forge
8. Othet

{8) Agricultural
1. Farm Byilding
2. Food Processing
3. Flah Hatchery
4. Greanhouse
5. Ohav

{9 Communications

1. Tslephane Building
2. Radio of TV Statien
3, Hewssapsr

;t Ragar

i Other

{10} Transportation

. Rattroag Facillly
2 Al Facillly

3, Air Fagitlty

4 Wale Facily

4 Qthet

{11) Governmental, National

1. Lagisialive

2. 0flice

3. Fosi Qlfice

4. Mini ano Tiaasury
5. Gustoms House
6, Embassy

1. Court Mouse

8. Oiner

(12) Governmental, Local
1. Clty Hail
2. Court Mouse
3. Commiunlly Hall
4, Ragisiry Ollics
5. Gthsr

(13} Govarnmental, Qther

{14) Mititary

{15) Remedial

{16} Raliglous -

1, Public Salety and Service 1. Bartacks 1 Hospital 1, Church of Synagogue
2. Psnal Institution 2 A"""OI'T 2. Clinig and Centre 2. Monaatary or Convant
3. Othar i g::;f[:allon 3. Hwging Home 3. Rectary - -

. 4. Asylum 4, Chuich Hall

5. Anlmai Hospitat , 5. Other
- 8. Other
| (17) Food Servica (18) Funerary (19) Non-Shetter, Watar (20) Non-Shatar Other
1. feslau:am 1. Camatery 1. Brdgs 1. Gate or Bary Feature
2. Tarvarn 2. Maysoisum 2 Aqueduct 2 Kiosk or Info Burasu
3. Qthar +F H 3. Tuansl
: O:;em oma 4 Dam 3. Non-Funweral Monumaent
Gthor 5 Lock 4. Clocx of Bell Tower
8. Othee

5. Other

(21) Mixed (More than 2)
othas

8 CRIGINAL USE

Unknown (

Same I

of use 'Present Use' list l l

"4, SITE

Unknawn

‘ Origingl F .

Movad

Other e l

—

]
r. sNVIRONMENT & THREAT

S&C‘urs Thisat |Unknown

Urban Isolaled

Rural Isofated

ggcucs | Threal | Unknowdn

w-L-th.mn. Part of Compatible Group

Rural, Part of Compatible Group

Urban, Part of Hostile Group

Rural, Part of Hostlle Group
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RESUME
Gregory J. Koos Marital Status: Married
609 E. Front Street Born: September 26, 1949
Bloomington, Illinois 61701
(309) 828-5791 '
Education: Illinois State University 1967-1973
Employment: Archivist/Site Manager

McLean County Historical Society
201 E. Grove Street

Bloomington, IL 61701

(309) 827-0428

Skills: - Collecting, organizing and creating finding
~ aides for historical research. Also assist-

ing and conducting research on McLean County
and State of Illinois history. Also experi-
enced in supervising and directing building
restorations utilizing the Secretary of the
Interior's standards. Also trained.and
experienced in historical architectural
survey work,

Professional

Memberships: Illinois State Historical Society
Pioneer America Society
Association for Preservation Technology
Vernacular Architecture Forum
Society for Commercial Archeology
Illinois Association for the Advancement of History
Bloomington/Normal 0ld House Society

Professional
Service: Board Member, Illinois Association of Historic
Preservation Commission

Program Committee, Landmarks Preservation Council
of Illinois

Board Member, Congress of Illinois Historical
Societies and Museums

Chairman, Blovmington Historic Comnservation
- Commission.. ,

Board Member, McLean County Arts Council
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L. Local Preservation GConce

ORDINANCE NO. 1983-93

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BLOOMINGTON CITY CODE, CHAPTER 44, ARTICLE 3.00, SECTION
3.20; ARTICLE 6,00, SECTION 6.44; ARTICLE .00, SECTION 6.81; ARTICLE 6.00,
SECTION 6,90; AND ARTICLE 9.00, SECTION 9.10(g) BY DEFINING TERMS ASSOCIATED
WITH HISTORIC'PRESERVATION, BY ESTABLISHING THE BLOCMINGTON HISTORIC PRESER-
VATION COMMISSION AND BY ESTABLISHING NEW PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS FOR IMPLE-
MENTATION OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION IN THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS.

a

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State
of Illinois, provides that any municipality which has a population of more than
25,000 is a home rule unit, and the City of Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois,
with a population in excess of 25,000 is a home rule unit and may exercise any
Power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs,
including, but not limited to, the power to requlate for the protection of the
public health, gsafety, morals, and welfare; and

WHEREAS, movement and shifts of population and the changes in residential,
commercial, and industrial use and customs threaten the destruction of certain
areas, places, buildings and structures having special historical, community,
or aesthetic interest or value and whose presservation and continued utiliza-
tion are necessary and desirable for the enjoyment and beauty of the City of
-Bloomington and for the welfare of the citizens of the City of Bloomington;
and ’

WHEREAS, the City of Bloomington contains certain areas, places, buildings
and structures which embody a sense of time and place unique to the City, or
which exemplify or refleet the cultural, social economic, political, or archi-
tectural history of the nation, the State of Illinois, or the City; and

WHEREAS, certain specific areas, places, buildings and structures within
said City, including Franklin Square, Clover Lawn-The David Davis Mansion,
the McLean County Court House and Square, the Miller-Davis Building, the George
Miller House, the Reuben M. ‘Benjamin House, the John M. Hamilton House, and
Adlai E. Stevenson II House have been identified and placed on the National
Register of Historic Places; and )

WHEREAS, without coordination of future improvements in the City of

Bloomington with desired aesthetic qualities, developments can and will occur

which will adversely affect the value of other properties within the vicinity
and discourage the maintenance and improvement of surrounding properties with
the result that surrounding properties will become degenerate and blighted and
‘will adversely affect the health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the
inhabitants of the vicinity in which such uses are located zund the inhabitants
of the City at large, and cause an erogsion of the City's tax basa by reason of
blight and deterioration; and

WHEREAS, it is highly desirable and within the exercise of the police
power to provide special conditions, requlations and other measures reasonable
and appropriate to. the preservation, protection, enhancement, and use of such
areas, places, buildings and structures; and .




- 2 =

WHEREAS, .the City Council of the City of Bloomington has determined that
the health, safety, morals, and general walfare of the residents of the City
of Bloomington will be promoted by the protection of this historic’ character
of the City of Bloomington in the manner hereinafter provided;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED hy the City Council of the City of
Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois: :

SECTION ONE: - o . ~
That the Chapter 44, Article 3.00, Section 3.20 of the Bloomington
City Code, 1960 shall be and the same is hereby amended by-inserting
gubsections 3.20-10.0, 3,20-33.1, 3.20-33.2, 3.20~47.1, 3.20-54.1,
3.20-55.1, 3.20-75.1, 3,20-94.1, 3.20=102.1, 3.20-150.1, 3.20-
153.1, and 3.20-153.2 as hereinafter printed in Exhibit 1 which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference;

SECTION TWO: - . ’

That the Chaptar 44, Article 6.00, Section 6.44 of the Bloomington

city Code, 1960 shall be and the same is hereby amended as herein-

after printed in Exhibit 2 which is attached hereto and made a

part hereof by this reference;

-

-

SECTION THREE: : i
That the Chapter 44, Article 6.00, Section 6.81 of the Blcomington
City Code, 1960 shall be and the same is hereby amended as herein-
after printed in Exhibit 3 which is attached hereto and made a part
hereof by this reference;

SECTICON FQUR:.
Phat the Chapter 44, Article 6.00, Section 6.90 of the Bloomington
city Code, 1960 shall bhe and the same is hereby amended as herein-
after printed in Exhibit 4 which is attached hereto and made a part
. hereof by this reference;
SECTION FIVE: ) i
That the Chapter 44, Article 9,00, Section 9.10 of the Bloomington
City Code, 1960 shall be and the same is hereby amended by inserting
subsection (g) as hereinafter printed in Exhibit 5which is attached
hereto and made a part hereof by this refersnce;

SECTION .SIX: :
That this Ordinance is enacted pursuant to and as an exercise of the
- City of Bloomington's authority as a home rule unit under Article VII,
Section 6, of the 1970 constitution of the State of Illinois;

SECTION SEVEN: i :
This Ordinance shall he in full force and effect ten (10) days after
publication; and :

SECTION EIGHT:
All other Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with the
foregoing are hereby- amended accordingly.




PASSED this 29th  day. of pecember, 1983,

APPROVED this 28+h day of Decem_ber, 1983

ATTEST: 'APPROVED:
!
Sandra Cordero o ‘Richard Buchanan
City Clerk Mayor
'DISAPPROVED:
REASQON: Richard Buchanan -

Mayor




John B. McBarnes Memorial Building McLean County Couxt House
1922 Bloomington, IL

201 E. Grove Street 21-04-350-002

Public Building

A.F, Moratz, Architect

1] ) . .
NSIRAT peeeer

The John B, McBarnes Memorial Building is a three story masonxzy structure
of Neo=Classic design. It has a full basement whose walls are all made of
hand fired red brick. The walls:above are hollow glazed tile faced with pale
yellowish tan brick probably from St. Louis. It is trimmed with Bedford lime=
stone. The flooxs are of wooden construction, covered with terxazo in many
locations.

Built in 1922 with a donation of $100,000 by Mr. and Mrs. John McBarnes,
and about equal expendituxe by the County of McLean, it was specifically design-

ed to house rooms and offices of the Grand Army of the Republic, United Spanish




John B. McBarnes Memorial Building Page 2

War Veterané, the American Legion and the McLean County Historical Society.
The third floor was developed as public rooms to be used for banquets and
dances held by veterans! organizations,

This structure in form is a cube, the primary facade, facing Grove
Street is comprised of five bays of windows, The facade is dominated by a
three story stone portico composed of four columns of Bedford stone which
were diagonally quarried, so as to emphasize the graining. These columns
are backed by four, three story pilasters which as a whole suppoxrt the
entablature upon which is carved the building's name, The entrance is trimmed
with stone moulding and an entablaturxe. The outer windows on the first and
second story are trimmed with two story Bedford stone pilasters which
support an entablature like belt course, Between all first and second story
windows'is & cast metal panel which is decorated with a stylized American
shield. The third story windows are situated above those lower and at the
outer windows are separated by bms relief panels of fasces carved in Bedford
Stone. Above these is an entablature and brick parapet which is a continua-
tion of the portico. The East and West facades are composed of six bays of
windows in two sets of threes separated by a stair hall window at a half
stoxry. They are identical in treatment to the outer windows on the primary
facade. A door with classic moulding trim in stone is on the East, Every
twelfth course of the brick is recessed on the firét and second stories which
at the corners gives the appearance of quaina. The third story and parapet
brick is plain stretcher bond.

The building burned in 1972 destroying much of the third floor and
water damage occurred omn much of the lower stories., Because of various
political problems a decision to rehabilitate the building was not made

until 1975-76. John Gardner of Mills, Lux}, and Gardner provided plans for
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+the rehabilitation. To save money historic design features on the interiox
were, for the most part removed. These included custom hardwaxe, neo~¢lassic
plaster work and period dooxs, including a surprising numbexr of French doors.
The entry hall was, howevel, restored. More recent changes have included

the installation of thermo~pane windows eight over four immatation light
sash. The originals were eight over eight.

The architect, Arthur F. Moratz, was born in Bloomington in 188l. He
was the son of a local building contxactor named Herman Moratz, His older
brother, Paul, was an architect and Moratz went to work for him as a drafts-
man in 1899. In 1904 he enrolled in the School of Architecture., It is
uncertain whether Moratz graduated oxr not but by 1909 he was in Business in
Cleveland, Ohio in partnexship with a man named Fountain. He returned to
Bloomington in 1919 and made the city his home foxr the most of the rest of
his life. Moratz's practice was primarily ecglastical. Over 60 of his
church designs are known. His design, Holy Trinity Chuxch, Bloomington
was placed on the National Registexr of Histoxic Places in 1983, His own
home, which he designed is at 315 E. Chestnut and is part of the Franklin
Square Historic District. This district is both National Register and
zaoned S=4 (Historic and Cultuxal) by the City of Bloomington. A,F, Moratz

died in 1963.




Beich House/Beck Memorial Home John A, Beck Co.

c 1902/1935 209 E. Grove
209 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
) Moxrtuary 21-04-417~006

George Miller ? and unknown

3575k
o L S
S it

The Beich/Beck structure is a two story brick veneered frame building
with attic. BEssentially rectangular in shape it has a rear wing made from
the Paul F., Beich house and a wing to the west.

The original Paul F. Beich house was built ¢ 1902 and was a two story
framed building with a hippéd roof and cuxved portico. The walls were
covered with clapboard. 1t may have been designed by George Millexr fox
Beich's wife was a close friend of Millex's in~-laws and Miller 3 years
1ater designed large additions to Beich's candy factoxry at Lumber and Front

Streets.. Paul F. Beich was boxn in Gexmany in 1864 and came to the United




Beich House/Beck Memorial Home Page 2

States in 1882, He learned the candy business from various people and by
1905 had acquired the Bloomington Caramel Company from its Lancaster,
Pennsylvania owners, He died in 1937.

The present Beck Memorial Home was created by placing additions onto
the Beich house and covering the whole with brick veneexr, The design would
have been considered Federal by the architect, who was probably local. The
Grove Street facade is a two story 5 bay rectangle with a ons stoxy, one bay
wing originally to each side. More recently a one bay wing has been added
to the west wing. The Grove Street facades prime feature is a two sto:y
portico formed of four wood columns supporting a wood pediment trimmed with
dentils. The first story windows are eight light two door casements with
a raised panel and rail base., They have fan windows above and have a half
round brick trim with a lime stone key, The windows of the bays each side
of the front door are cameo with cruciform stone trim. The door itself is
trimmed with a broken pediment in wood. On the second flooxr the outer two
windows are eight over eight sash with louvered shutters., The inner three
windows are ome over one sash, The wholeé is tbpped with a hip roof imitation
slate composition roofing. The side wings are flat roofed, A parapet with
a plain stone panel above each bay is finished with a stone parapet cap.
Located on the east facade to the rear is a porte-cochere of brick,

The John A, Beck Company was located in various downtown locations and
bhad this structure remodeled to suit the needs of their business, The

structure 1s very well maintained.




Ashael Gridley House James F. Thoxnton

1859/c 1910 301 E. Grove
301 E. Grove Bloomington, IL
Apartments 21-04~417-006

Architect Unknown

The Ashael Gridley house is a two story Italianate structure of masonry
construction, It has undergone three major phases of use and change: the
initial occupation by the Gridley family from 1859 to C. 1905, occupation by
the Howaxd Humphries family from c. 1906 to 1935 and its use as part of a
laxrgexr apartment complex, known as The Oaks, from 1935 to the present.

The Gridley house Wwas originally a rectangular building with a rear
service wing. Much of the original fabric is intact. Set upon a coursed
ashlar faced Joliet stone foundation, the masonry rectangle of Milwaukee

Brick laid in stretchexr bond is two stories in height and has symmetrical
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fenestration. Between the foundation and brick is a water table of Joliet
stone. The original primary or north facade is composed of three bays
separated by an entry way, which reflects the center hall form of interior
room arrangement and three bays of double windows on the second story. The
windows and door are headed with carved Joliet stone curved hoods., A wooden
veranda was originally located on this facade. The roof is hipped and featuxres
three gables with overhangs and inset double sash windows, the upper sash
being half round. The roof is covered with red tile. The original west
facade is composed of two windows on each story closely centered on the wall.
As on the north facade the first story windows are long double sash and the
second story windows are purportionally shorter, they also have curved stone
hoods. On the xoof slope are paired dormers identical to those on the north
and these are flanked by single chimney stacks of pale yellow brick. They
are decorated with relief panels and corbeled tops. The south and east
facades date from ¢ 1910.

Ashael Gridley was born in Cazenovia, New York in 1810 and came to
Bloomington in October of 1831, He was a highly energetic individual and
quickly put himself in the midst of the affairs of the four month old
community. He served with distinction in the Black Hawk War in 1832 and
was cited for coolness during the panic of the Battle of Stillman's Run.
Gridley was the epitome of the yankee capitalist seeking fortune in the West,
He was involved in numerous business propositions and was laxgely responsible
for the founding of Lexington and Leroy, Fllinois in 1836, Like the rest of
the State he went bankrupt during the Panic of 1837, He then turned to law
and politics and became associated with Abraham Lincoln, David Davis, aﬁd
Jesse Fell. Elected state senator in 1850 he is credited with insuring the
location of the Illinois Central Railroad through Bloomington, thereby guaran-

teeing the city's eventual success., With the railroad assured he became
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he became their principle land salesman in central Illinois. This was a
tremendous business opportunity fox the railroad was funded by the sale
of every othexr section of publicly owned 1and eight miles eithex side of
the right of way. During the height of the land sales it was said that
Gridley was earning $10,000 pexr week,

The impact of this was to make Gridley the town's first millionaire,
the town's first bankex, the town's first public utility franchee (a gas
works) and the town's most reviled man. Local tradition has it that when
Lincoln saw the house going up he asked, "Do you want everybody to hate you,
Gridley?'" In the years up to his death in 1881 Gridley'!s name appears foxr
almost every public subscription and he was also intimately involved in
almost every large local business deal. During his entire life he was
involved in litigation, suing and being sued in return, His nature was
perhaps best summarized by Lincoln when in a successful negotiated settle=
ment of a slander sult he simply told the plaintiff that if he went to
court he would say, "Its not slander, everybody knows Gridley talks that way."

About 1905 Howard Humphries purchased the property from Mrs. Gridley's
estate. He, by 1916 had extensively remodeled the place by putting on
numerous additions, replacing the wooden veranda with one of brick and
pbuilding a piazza at the east facade. Humphries was a whole sale grocer who
valued the area for its convenience to the nearby location of the main line
of two national raidlxoads. His example was followed by many wholesalers,
who as a class, nearly dominated. the entire Grove Street district.

In 1935, Fred Hitch, a local developer acquixed the bouse and lot.

He erected a large apartment building in front of the Gridley house and
removed the brick yeranda built duxing the Humphries occupation. He also

erected a steam plant on the rear of the Gridley house. Most impoxrtantly
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he left the house pretty much intact and was sensitive to it when dividing

it into apartments,



The Oaks James F., Thornton

c 1935 301 E., Grove
301 E, Grove : Bloomington, IL
Apartment House 21-04~417~004

Architect Unknown

The Oaks is a three story masonry structure of irregular plan, designed
in a Federal style, Developed as an apartment house by Fred Hitch ¢ 1935
it is known for its elegance and as a good address. Its primary draw has
been from well-to-~do widows.

The primary facade is composed of a pavilion like arrangement containing

nine bays of windows. The walls arxe made of red brick laid in flemish bond
with occasional stretcher courses, Limestone trimmings include a watex
table, stone panel and a stone belt course in the wing's parapets. windows

at the first stoxy are six over nine light and six over six light on the
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second and thixd stories. The primary entrance is centered on the facade
and has plain moulding. The principle design detail is the half round
header of brick voussiors with a stone key., The door is also finished half
round and has raised panels and moulded rails, It is approached by elipsoid
concrete steps, The xroof is hipped and has hipped dormers,

The two wings which form the pavilion have diagonally placed entrances
above which are second and thixd story porches of cast iron.. These entrances
and porches sexve as the signature pieces to the structure for oak motifs
are freely used., The entrances have stone pilasters supporting cak leaf
swags and a large centered acorn. The porches are constructed of cast iron
in an oak leaf and acoxn filigree,

Along the sidewalk runs the oxiginal Gridley fence which is of cast and
wrought iron with large Joliet stone gate posts. It is the finest mid-
Victorian yard fence in the area, Other features on the propexrty include:

a fine three bay brick barn ox garage, large Oak trees from the original
Blooming Grove, a '"picturesque" ruined wall and a Puxple Martin bird house

in Chalet style with a fine slate roof.
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Thornton Motor Company Building James F. Thoxnton

1947/1949 301 E, Grove
207 S, Gridley/307 B. Grove. Bloomington, IL
Automobile Repairs 21-04=417=004

Architect Unknown

The Thoxrnton Motor Company building is a two story masonry structure
built in Moderne style as a sales and repaixr facility for Lincoln=Mexcury
automobiles, It is an "L" shaped building oriented North-South. The wing
which completes the "L'" was built in 1949.

Although it is not compatible with the theme of this survey-fhis builde
ing is one of the finest examples of Moderne styled buildings in this vacinity.
It clearly expresses the stre;mlined nature of the Moderne movement with

emphasis on the horizontal through the banding of windows, thin profile xoofs
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rounding about the show windows, circular windows, and occasionally vertical
relief by the use of engaged brick columns,

It is apparently constructed of concrete block sheathed with variegated
brown brick. Windows are steel casement of two and four light surrounded by
fixed lights numbering 10, 12 and l6lpanes, The larger windows are at the
first story. The show windows are large flat pieces of plate glass held by
thin profile muntins, On the noxrth facade a paneled garage doors of a common
type. The two primary entrances are double leaf wood doors with large panels
of glass, Limestone is used for window sills and parapet caps., The roofs

are flat.




T.W. Wood Flats Harold M, and Mary Alic Franzen

loo2 Flanagan, IL
402 E, Grove 21-04-415=009
Apartments

} Architect Unknown

The T.W. Wood flats is a frame construction four flat structure. Rectan-
gular in form it has some late Victorian era detailing. Completed by Mr, Wood
in 1902 work on the site was apparently started in 1900, T.W. Wood was prob=
ably the son of Wn , T. Wood of 410 E, Grove. The stucco covered frame,
enclosed two story front porch was probably added between 1910 and 1925. It
is an Arts and Crafts period d_esigno It now is:divided into seven or eight
units.

The primary facade is composed of two large two story bay windows which

i are capped with gabled wall dormers. In the faee of the wall in each dormex

are thin rectangular fixed windows of 12 lights, The gable face is shingled,
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These two bays which define the four flat function are linked by a flat wall
which contains the entrance for the upper story. This is capped by a hipped
wall dormex faced with paired double sash having nine oval lights. The
nature of this composition is much hidden by the two story poxch, The porch
itself is on the first story arcaded and features low angular arches, The
porch. entrance is trimmed in wood to reflect this., The upper stoxry is closed
and was undoubtedly deéigned as a sleeping porch.

The long secondary facade to the west is composed of symmetrically
placed windows which are trimmed with plain weod moulding. This wall has
six inch beveled siding on the first stoxy and four inch beveled siding on
the second story. Transition between the two is provided by flat stock
capped with slight bell casting of the first four courses of the upper story
siding. Exposed wall flush chimneys run from the full basement through the
roof edge at the noxth end. The whole is topped with a truncated hip roof
with hipped dormers.

The house is in fair condition and needs repair work on many of its
elements. Sensitive repairs have been made on the shingle work in the
primary facade,

Primary source:

Bloomington Daily Pantagraph, September 5, 1900
Bloomington Daily Bulletin, December 12, 1902




Miss Mabel Holmes duplex Brett and Cynthia Green Renc

c 1914 206 Imperial Drive
404=406 E., Grove Bloomington, IL
Apartnents 21=04=-415=010

| Architect Unknown

The Holmes duplex is a two stoxy frame structure designed in the
Craftsman style. It was oxiginally a single family structure built ¢ 1895
for Mrs, Sarah Colvin, widow of a prosperous farmer, and extensively remodel-
ed on the interior and exterior c¢ 1914. The soft brick foundation is,
perhaps, the major exterior fabric of the original c 1895 structure remaine
ing, It is presently a four unit apartment, Miss Holmes was a legatee of
Mrs. Colvin and the duplex was undoubtedly developed to provide income for
Miss. Holmes.

This balloon framed building is rectangular in form and on the primary
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facade its design clearly reflects the intended purpose, Two entrance doors
are situated on the outer edges and to the ineide of each axe single windows,
A veranda with a low profile roof supported by three square wooden columns
completes the composition with the center column bisecting the house, The
upper story has two windows with one centered on their respective halves of
the facade, Qn the front slope of the low hipped xoof is a low gabled
dormer with projecting verges which is also centered, Both the poxch and
the roof have wide plain facias and soffits, 7The side walls have symmetrical
fenestration. The whole is covered with 6;inchfbeveled siding. The windows
and dooxrs have plain wooden moulding., It is unknown when the shutters were
applied.

The structure is in fair condition, The porch and roof soffits have
apparently been damaged by water and bhoards are hanging loose, Poxch
skixts, which are made with fret work are hanging loose, One has fallen,
Only one of the porch railings has the original baliisters intact, The
other three are recent infills using a large X pattern done with 2" x 4's,
Even these verf recent additions are in poor shape. Since the structure
has apparently been kept well painted it would be inexpensive to return

the house, on the exterior, to its original 1914 configuration.




william T, Wood House Robert E. Finnegan

1869 1104 Morrissey Dxive
410 E. Grove Bloomington, IL
Apartments 21-04-415-011

Architect Unknown

The William T. Wood house is a two story frame structure originally
Italianate in design. It is presently covered with stucco, applied ¢ 1950,

William T. Wood was a dry goods store owner whose business was located
on the East side of the Bloomington courthouse square,. This was a prima
location and Wood was;cdﬂsidered to be a: leading merchant. His son, Richard,
became a widely known political cartoonist, being syndicated out of his home
paper, the St. Louis Post - Dispatch,; at the turn of the century. Richard
was raised in this house.

The house maintains its oxiginal Ttalianate form, a three bay primary
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facade and low hipped roof with paired roof brackets. From earlier photos
it can be seen that the house had beveled wood siding, a one story veranda
with considerable decoration. Mrs, Dimment recalled "long French windows™
on the firxst storﬁ.

Presently the house bears little resemblance to the original., The
veranda has been remodeled, the French windows replaced with smaller ones
and filled with siding. The door has been decoxated with wooden pilasters
and entablature in an effort to make the house appear ''colonial!', On the
second story the original six over six light window sash remains,

Foxr a house that was substantially rehabilitated 25 years ago it is in
poor condition. But sufficient photographic and documentary evidence
remain for an accurate restoration to be accomplished, The structure is an

impoxtant part of the Grove Street area and should be presexved,




Horace S, McCurdy House Patricia Cich and

1877 Barry L. Spitznass

414-416 E. Grove 414 E, . Grove, Apt 1
} Apartments Bloomington, IL

Richter and Harris, Axchitects 21 =04-415-012

The Horace McCuxrdy house is a two story framed structure designed in
an Italianate style, It is irxegular in form and has received changes and
additions from c. 1895 to. recent times.

Attribution of architect is based upon Richter and Harris's plan

nwWestern Cottage! which was. design number 33 in the American Buildex in

1874, The Horace McCurdy house isj in essence, that plan mixroxed. Othex
variations from the plan as published was t+he elimination of the towexr ... -
above the entry hall and less use of exterior millwork, finial, and othex

embelishments. Richtexr was an immd.grant from Prussia who had started on

architectural practice in Bloomington in 1856 with a local contractox,
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S.D. Rounds, He practiced on his own up to about the period this plan was
published. By the time this house was built Richter was working for Henxy
Miner a builder, planning mill operator and self-taught architect. Little
is known concerning Harris, Richter's other known designs include the
Rounds-block (105~109 E, Front) part of the Bloomington central business
district, and Home Park Place, near Towanda, both on the National Register
of Histoxic Places.

The primary facade of the McCurdy house is composed of a four bay front.
It is arranged as a slightly offset gabled mass with wings of unequal length
set to each side., The original entrance is offset to the far left of the
left wing of the house, A later entrance, to accommodate apartments is
centered on the right. Windows on the first floor front facade are relatively
new installations, dating c 1960, which are not in keeping with the original
design. The upper story is far more revealing. The left wing has a single
two ovexr two light window with an elipsoid wooden header, This wing is
placed behind the entrance hall., The right wing has two windows of identi-.
cal design. The gabled section has a doubled window with one over one sashes,
Above this is placed a wide flat hood with Victorian turnings which "drip",
Beneath this window is an open balcony supported by large stick style wooden
brackets., The gable has two closely piaced round windows, The entire primary
facade was sided with German ox Novelty siding. It remains at the entrancé
and on the upper stories. The other facades have weather-boaxrd siding used,
a less costly product. The front corners of the house are trimmed with rope
moulding identical to that used on the Henry Miner remodeling of the Hudson
Burr house on Franklin Square in Bloomington. The original 1877 house can
be identified from windows which are identical in form to those of the

primary facades., Turn~of-the~century additions have flat windowheads, Also,
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in that time period a large porch was added to the structure which completely
overwhelmed the original design. This porch was in place as late as 1957,

Horace McCurdy (b. 1823 - d. 1923) was a successful hardware dealer
who acquired this lot known as the Nichol's property in 1877, He traded a
house and lot on West Locust Street in Bloomington for it., Miss Laura
McCurdy (b. ____ ~ d. 1954), Horace'!s daughter, was a well known art collectox
in this area., She was instrumental in establishing the first art gallery
in Bloomington, The Russell, which was located in Withers! Public Library.
She traveled widely in her collecting efforts and donated work to the Russell
Gallery including 'etchings by Whistler and Ingres.

The house is in good condition and interest in its preservation has
been shown by the owners. Removal of the ¢ 1960 windows on the front
facade and replacement with period windows and the replacement with pexiod
windows and the replacement of the first story siding on the front facade
with German siding would do much to return the structure to its original
appearance.

Primary sSources:

The American Builder New York, 1874, design #33
Bloomington Weekly Pantagraph Maxrch 9, 1877




Prince/Mower House

Howard A. Jacobs

¢ 1855/c 1900 418 B, Grove
418 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect unknown 21-04~415-013
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The Prince/Mower house, the east half of which dates ¢ 1855, is a
frame structure of parallel rectangles in plan. It had gained its present

form by 1901 although shingle siding was applied to it later in this

century.
Mrs. Laura Benjamin recalled the house standing in 1856 in a 1906
interview. The 1873 bixd's-eye view of Bloomington indicates that the east

or right half of the house is the earlier for the story and a half section
is not present in that view.
As it stands today the Prince/Mower house is a 1% story house of two

bays on the prime facade. Each bay is set on the two parts of the house
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which are of two distinqt pericds. Entrance is gained from a small porch
on the left bay, the roof of which is supported by three neo-classic wooden
pillars. Above the porch is a steeply pitched roof, A low hipped doxrmex
is centered on this roof. The half story gable has two windows centered in
it. The roof pitch ends midway on the slope for it is intersected with a
I story low pitched roof for the rear wing.,

The right section of the house, dating c 1855 is, perhaps, typical of
the quickly built, low cost housing associated with the railroad boom of
the period 1853-1857. Entrance to this section is gained from a dooxr on
the east facade., It is unknown whether this is the original entrance
location or whethexr it was on the primary facade., This section sits vexry
close to the street, is one story, and has a moderately pitched roof.

Ezra Moxrton Prince (b 183l - d 1917) was the earliest known occupant
of the house. He is listed there in 1868, He may have lived there ten
years earlier, Prince was boxrn in Turner, Maine, graduated from Harvard
Law School and arrived in Bloomington in 1856, He, a small scholarly man
with a pronounced limp successfully passed the State Bar Exam and went into
practice locally. As a young lawyer he came into close contact with
Abraham Lincoln, David Davis, and the other lawyers who travelled the 8th
Judicial Circuit. He was one of the founders of the Free Congregational
Society and Unitarian Church., Prince's most lasting contribution to the
community was his founding, in 1892, of the McLean County Historical Society.

Prince oversaw the work of this organization from its founding to his death

in 1917,
By 1891 the house was occupied by Rufus and Nellie Mowef°- Their two
sons, Paul Scott (b 1887) and Edgar Ansel (b 1892), were both born here and

spent their early childhoods here. These two brothers became two of the
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best known American journalists in their long careers as foreign corres-
pondents. Paul Scott, the better known of the two covered W.W.I, the
troubles of Europe in the 1920's and 30's and W.W.II, all for the Chicago
Daily News. This newspaper was known internationally fox its European
coverage. He received a Pulitzer Prize for his work in 1929, In his auto-
biography, published in 1945, Mower fondly remembers Grove Street and provides
an excellent description of the neighborhood. Duxing Moweris work with the
Chicago Council on Foreign Relations in the 1930's he came in close contact
with fellow Bloomingtonian, Adlai Stevenson II and provided Stevenson many
contacts and insights important to the latter;s career.

Sources:

Mower, Paul Scott The House of Burope, Houghton, Mifflin & Coa,
Boston 1945

Martin, John Bartlow Adlai Stevenson of Illinois, Doubleday & Co.,
Garden City, New York, 1976




W. Wesley Hall house Joseph L. Warnexr and

c 1890 David Hartweg
420 B, Grove 525 N. East
Apaxrtments Bloomingten, IL
Axchitect Unknown 21~04-415~014

The W. Wesley Hall house is a Queen Anne style two story frame house,
situated on a corner lot. It was rehabilitated in the past ten years.

This large frame house, sided with clapboaxd, and essentially rectangu-
lar in:plan, has many of the attributes of the Queen Anne style, Its. neo-
classic detailing lends an assymetrical appearance with the design being
dominated by a wrap around veranda from which rises a corner turret with a
pyrimidal roof. Other design features include a flat stock belt couxse in
wood between the first and second story. On the first story wide coxrner-

boards connect to this featuxe. The upper story is decorated with a plain
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entablature placed underneath the bracket eaves. These classically inspired
details are reinforced with a pedimented porch entrance, with returns on the
gable and a gabled roof dormer which also has returns., Porch columns axe also
classic in nature being based on the Doric order, The east facade features
a large side porch, a twe story bay window and a large attic story gable,
This gable's face is now covered with contemporary shingle which may be
covering decorative shingle work, The small gabled dormer on the primaxry

or south facade is faced with decoxative slate, Other Queen Anne details
include the smooth brick base and wall of the perch and assymetrical window
placement. Duxing the c 1975 rehabilitation windows on the primary facade
on the first and second story were removed and replaced with siding which
matched the existing siding.

Little is known concerning W, Wesley Hall. His occupation was not in-
dicated in the City directory listings and his obituary could not be locatédu
He was, presumably a man of some means. He was the father of Judge Homexr
Hall of the MclLean County Cirxcuit Court.

The building is presently in good condition. The xehabilitation perform-
ed in the past ten years cexrtainly saved . the building for it was, previously,
in horrible shape. Restoration of thé structure at this point would simply
mean reestablishing windows of proper size and scale on the primary facade

and restoration of the gable face on the east facade.
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Dr, D.0O. Moore House James and Lucy Koehler

1874 401 E, Grove
401 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Single Family 21-04~418-009

Architect unknown

The Dr. D. O. Moore house is a large two story framed structure.
Designed in an Italianate style, it-contained both Dr. Moore'!s residence
and office.

The Moore house is not only a good example of Italianate design, it
also features an interesting construction technique. This rectangular
structure with a side office and rear service wing is set upon a common
bond soft brick foundation. The foundation windows have semi-eliptical
headers in brick. The first story walls are of heavy timber construction

and have brick nogging., The nogging was a period form of insulation. The
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studs, sills and corner posts ére of heavier grade material than is found
on balloon frame structures of this pexriod. The upper story walls are
framed as the lower story but are not nogged. The walls are faced with
clapboards,

The.north or primary facade is a three bay arrangement. On the first
a door to the west sexvicing the stair hall., This entry bhas a small porch
of recent construction. The side light and half elipses fan light which
dated ¢ 1910 has been removed and replaced with a plain rectangular transom
light and double leaf doors of Bastlake design. The windows are two over
two light sash and have eliptical wooden head mouldings., The three second
story windows have flat heads with similar moulding., The whole is capped with
a low pitch truncated hip roof. The roof line is defined with a boxed cornice
with a plain frieze and brackets., A wide, low pitched gabled wall dormer is
found on the primary facade. The eave line is carxied beneath this pediment
creating the effect of gable returns. A round window is placed in the centex
of this dormex. On the east facade is a one story bay window and on the
west is located a small office wing. The noxrth facade of this wing has a
period single leaf door placed beneath the original large and fanciful over
door. Arts and Crafts period double leaf french doors have been installed
on the west facade,

The interior of the house features a white marble fireplace, curved
stairs, ornate mouldings and original wainscotting in the service area,

Dx. D. O, Moore was born in Harrison County, Ohio in 1838. He began
the study of medicine in 1858, had a period of high adventure and began his
medical practice in 1863. His biographer in 1879 provides an insight to,
not only Dr. Moore but also the rationale behind his fine house: "During

1859-1860 he was engaged in freighting goods and supplies from Omaha,
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Nebraska to Denver, Colorado; while employed in this way he learned much
about Western life and travel on the plains., The hardness and sickness
endured by him while there stimulated him to provide himself with a good
home, which he now enjoys."

Sources:

Bloomington Weekly Pantagraph June 15, 1874

Bloomington Weekly Pantagraph July 12, 1874

LeBaron, Wm. The History of MclLean County, Wm. LeBaron, Chicago,
1879




Weldon/Funk House Richaxd L. Jones

1870/1911 P,O. Box 3211
407 B. Grove Blocomington, IL
Duplex 21-04-418-004

Pennington and Coultas, architect 7

The Weldon/Funk house is a large two story masonry structure built by

Lawrence Weldon in 1870 and substantially modified by Jacob Funk in 191l.
It occupies a full quarter block, a typical pexiod lot.

The original Weldon house was a cruciform brick stiucture, probably
built out of local soft baked brick and designed in an Italiante style. Its
three bay priméry facade featured a door and tall windows on the first floor.
A large wooden veranda ran across the front to the wings on either side.

The veranda, perhaps, explains the lack of large stone window. headers as
found on the three windows on the second story. A low pitched cross gabled

roof is set upon the stxucture. The wooden roof cornice is the most elaborate
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and finely worked in this vacinity. The brackets are delicate and well
purportioned and the fret work on them is expressed in large fret work
panels located on both the cornice freize and soffit., Dentils provide the
transition between the wood and masonry. This worﬂjis repeated on the
cross gahles,

The contractors for this building, William Pennington and Thomas
Coultas, worked during the period when the differences between and architect
and builder was not yet distinct. They may well have designed and constructe-
ed the building. Their advertisement in the 1870-~71 Bloomington City
Dixectory credited them‘with building it. Coultas, a fine carpenter who
designed and constructed the Judge Scott bookcases, now at the McLean
County Historical Society is credited with designing the Hewit-Wilson
Building 417-419 N. Main Street in Bloomington. An interior stairway,
possibly now removed, was designed and constxructed by the Melcher Stairx
Factory of Bloomington.

The building was converted to a duplex in 1911, At this time the
brick was stuccoed. A contemporary description of this treatment called
it "pebble and dash'". A stair hall was added on the west side of the
building. The veranda was removed. Twin porches now flank the house,

They feature low gabled roofs, large piers and heavy plain wooden suppoxt
brackets. This work created a curious hybrid of a distinct Axrts and Crafts
period overlay to an Italiante base., The effect is not displeasing.

Judge Lawrence Weldon the original occupant practiced on the &8th
Judicial Circuit before the Civil War., A friend of Lincoln's, he was
appointed Federal State's Attorney for the Southern District of Illinois
in 1861. He maintained close ties to the Republican Party, in 1868 deliver-

ed the dedicatory address for the Veteran's Monument in Franklin Square and
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in 1883 was appointed Judge of the United States Couxrt of Claims., FPresident
Ulysses S. Grant stayed at his house in April of 1880 while attending a
soldiers! reunion in Bloomington. In his retirement Judge Weldon was

active in the Chautauqua movement and presented lectures and reminiscences
on Lincoln. He died in 1905.

Jacob Funl obtained the house from the Weldon estate and converted it
to a duplex. He was a descendent of Isaac Funk the early settler noted for
his large land holdings. He was prominent in his own right being the
President of the State National Bank of Bloomington. He died, on the same

day as his brother in 1919,
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Edward B. Gridley House Alice L. and Lee McTurnan

1886-87 409 E. Grove
409 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Single Family 21-04~418-005

George Millex, Architect

The Edward B. Gridley house, & large two story frame, is the finest
example of Queene Anne architecture in McLean County and is the most
meticulously maintained 19th Century structure in this vacinity.

Irregular in form it exhibits every positive aspect of Queen Anne

- design, rich detailing in assymetrical placement creating a pleasing whole.

* To describe the structuxe in any depth would be to detail practically
every product that wood, brick and slate manufacturers were producing in
that period. Set upon a full brick foundation which features some decoxa-

tive brick panels, the essentially cubical plan house on its primary facade
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features a two story tuxret to the east balanced by an open poxch which
wraps around the west side, This tends to disguise a two story bay window
set off center below a large and highly decorated gable. The porch roof
has a steeply pitched gable to indicate the entry, Directly above the
porch gable is a second story porxch which underguts; but visually completes,
the large attic stoxry gable. The roof itself is complex in forms and features
a conical rxoof for the towexr, a swept xoof dormex and cross gables. The
siding of the house is predominantly clapboard and features decorative belt
courses and panels, fish scale shingling on the turret and diamond pattern
shingling on the roof gables. Turnings are used foxr the porch railing
balisters, posts, and porch and window eave curtains. The xoof slating,
which is vexry well preserved, consists of square, fish scale and diamond
pattern shingle. The finals and ridge cups are sheet metal, Even the
diamond pattern latice work on the porch skirting is in high relief. Now
painted a pale yellowish brown, the house was originally in greens and reds,
highlighted with black and gold. The interior also featured frescoing by
Cyrenius Russell, a local decoratox.

The house was designed by Bloomington axchitect George Miller for
Edward B. Gridley. Gridley was the son of the town's first millionaire,
and apparently did not inherit his father's astuteness, only his tempera-
ment. Costing $10,000 the house was cause for a law suit against Gridley
for his failure to purchase hardware from a local dealer as agreed by contract.
Gridley was later to be named in a breach of promise suit and lost much of
his father's fortune on a scheme to extract natural gas from water that was
found close to pockets of methane gas. By 1903 or 1904 the house was owned
by Huber Light a local attorney who was best known as the brother of the
Broadway actress, Maude Light (Margaret Illington). Maude Light was later

to marry Major Bowes of "the Original Amateur Hour!, an immensely popular
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radio show. Today the home is owned by the same family,

l.r
I'A I
SN
Ry '\\
¥
1 SN
. A ’_‘:
N
~ A

3

=
w %
\\‘\m‘m \

£5
fss
=

e 3

—_— =.

_ =

j—— I - ”,

[ — H = =

—_ ; -~

pre—— ¢ :

P ¢ =

L iy [ =

P — ! = 3

frm— H =

j—— | = 3

s — - = -

. " — N bact =

S g =

- B =4
i = - gy
. ‘1‘.’1,’:‘}_._- ,*
& A -
= " 1 s
2 . pcm s
AT ; + R T 3
5 < i s > i




John &. Roush House Arden K. Nowers

1870 421 E. Grove
421 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Apartments 21-04-418-006

Architect unknown

The John Roush house is a two story brick Italianate structuxe. Built
in 1870 it was indicative of the newly arxived wholesale grouexrs' assumption
of status in the community. The building is well maintained and in an
excellent state of preservation.

The structure is divided into two destinct parts, a formal front,
cubical with a wing and a service wing at the rear. Built of local haxd
common brick laid in stretcher bond, it is set on a Joliet stone foundation
laid in a coursed ashlar manner. The two are separated by a stone water-
table. The noxth ox primary facade is composed of three bays. On the first

story two windows and an entrance at the west indicate-a sidehall interiox
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configuration. The upper story has three, two over two light windows. The
upper sash of which is topped half-round neatly fitting the round window
openings formed by header laid brick. This header type is used on all of
the openings in the front.section of the house. The service wing has all
flat headers. On the east wing is a one story brick bay window., The roof
is extremely low pitched and is completely dominated by a laxge and highly
worked cornice, featuring brackets with pendants. The cornice line is
intefrupted by a wall doxmer centered on the primary facade and the east
facade of the wing. The original wooden veranda was replaced ¢ 1907 by the
present one during remodeling for W,F, Engle, This veranda is neo~classic
inspired and features large smooth ashler Bedford limestone piexrs from
which rise wooden columns. At the corners these columns are interpreted as
piers., ‘To indicate entrance on to the porch a pedimented gable is placed
on the west. The cornice-of the porch and pediment is decorated with dentils.
The cornice of the service wing poxch is, perhaps, a remnant of the original
1870 porch.

The nature of the masonry material and construction detailing is highly
reminiscent of features found on buildings known.to have been constructed by
S.D. Rounds, contractor and Rudolph Richter, Axrchitect. One of these men is,
perhaps, the designer of this structure.

John Roush was boxn in Highland County, Ohio in 1832, He worked and
was partner in various grocery concerns in the midwest. Coming to Bloomington
in 1869, after apparently considerable success, he went into partnership with
John McMillan (506 E. Grove). In 1879 he became partnexr with J.F. Humphries
and was killed in 1884, dragged to death by a runaway horse,

Source:

Bloomington Weekly Pantagraph April 20, 1870




John Mikel House Maxry M. Baker

c 1912 502 E., Grove
} 502 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect Unknown 21=04~416-008

The John Mikel house is a two story structure of rectangular form

built of wood frame with a brick veneer. Stylistically it is of Arts and
Crafts period. Its attempt to create a low swept appearance-is»compromised
by its essentially Victorian bulkiness. In its day it would have been
considered a 'craftsman' style house.

The structure is rectangular in form and symetrical in layout. The
south or primary facade is composed of three bays. Set up on & highex
grade from the sidewalk, the poxch floor is reached by 10 steps. That is
very high fox this essentially flat landscape. The entrance, centered on

the facade, is formal and has a beveled glass door and recessed sidelights.
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The entrance is flanked on the right by an cpen veranda and on the left

the veranda has been closed. The projecting center bay on this facade is
further reinforced on the second flooxr by paired one over one light windows.
The flanking single windows on the exterior bays also have one over one lights,
The west facade features the same window arrangement and centex projecting
bay. This sameness is relieved by stone belt courses, window sills and wide
eaves, which have been recently covered with aluminum, The frame construc-~
tion of the house is signaled by hipped roof dormers which are faced with

wood shingle. The primary roof is also hipped,

Jobn Mikel was born in Dark County, Ohio in 1841, He was brought to
McLean County in 1845 by his family. A successful stockman and farmer in
Downs and Old Town Township, he owned 450 acres by the time he built this
house, his city retirement home,

The house is well maintained, Only the aluminum placed on the eaves

seriously detracts from its appearance.



George F. Brand House Ruth Kchlex

c 1883 504 E, Grove
504 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect Unknown 21-04=416=-009

B

The George F. Brand house was a (ueen Anne style two story frame
structure. Because of extensive modification which took place in the past

10 years, no historic features remain. From the general form it can be
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said that it had the detailing and assymetrical layout typical of the
Queen Anne period, All windows have been xeplaced with modern sash
inappropriate to the scale of the house. All exterior walls are covered
with aluminum siding.

Brand was named for his father and followed him into the furniture
business., He died at the age of 83 in 1935. Because of the close
connection between the Brana family and George Miller, the Bloomington
architect, it is probable that Miller designed this house,

As it sits the house little resembles the stxucture which George
Brand built. Undoubtedly much original detail is left behind the aluminum

siding but the interior design and detailing is probably a complete loss,

The grounds are well maintained,




Johnt McMillan House Wilbur G. and Dorothy B. Taylox

c 1834 506 B, Grove
506 E. Grove Bloomington, IL
Builder/Architect Unknown 21~04=~416~010

The John McMillan house is a good example of cottage style architecture
promoted by various authors in popular and nationally distributed pattern
books befoxe 1860. Similarities in layout, detail and facade to those

suggested by Oliver Smith in his The Domestic Architect (Buffalo, New York

1854) suggest that, perhaps the unknown builder used Smith's book to design
this house. Smith said, "the cottage style is well suited to domestic
purposes, and harmonizes admirably with the picturesque rural scenery of
this country" (pg 23).

This one-and-a~half story house with clapboard siding is composed as a
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three bay primary or south facade. Set upon a common brick foundation,

the house is rectilinear in plan and has a kitchen wing to the rear. Later
additions have been made to the house including the front porch. It is

the front porch which obscures some of the carpentry work which typifies
this style of house, The front door is flanked with two windows and each
of these openings is capped with a wooden, classically inspired, cornice.
The classicism is further reinforced by the wide cornexr pilasters and
entablature, A wide freize board runs across the entire front at the roof
eave.,

The highly pitched roof, which parallels the street, is bisected by a
.steeply pitched wall dormer which has a txiple window reminiscent of a
palladium window. The gable is facade with a classic profile moulding.
The windows on the secondary facades have plain moulding., A bay window is
located upon the east facade. Modern wood has been applied over the base
of the bay window,

Little is known of John McMillan except that he was a wholesale grocer
in Bloomington from c¢ 1855 to at least 1870, when he was in partnership
with John Roush (421 E, Grove).

The house 1s maintained in good condition.

Source:

Victorian Domestic Architecture, A Facsimilie of Oliver P, Smith!s,
The Domestic Architect American Life Foundation, Watkins Glen, NY
- 1978




E.F, Klienau House Ronald and Carolyn Montgomery

1910 508 E, Grove
508 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect Unknown 21~04~416~011

The B, F. Klienau house is an excellent example of the craftsman style

house of the midweét. The design is essentially a four square with wing.
Yet the window placement and detailing certainly suggest that it.was not
produced from nationally distributed plans.

This clapboard sided frame construction, two stoxry house is' essentially
a three bay composition. The asymmetrical placement of the multi=-light
casement windows on the first story in relationship to the symmetxical
upper story windows and dormer suggest a careful hand. The first stoxry
windows are visually secured in their placement by the basement windows

found directly below them. The entrance to this. four square is at tha east
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side of the facade which is highly unusual for a house of this plan. Brick
Stoops are arranged in front of tapexring brick piers which flank the entrance
from which a gabled over door is supported by large craftsman style brackets.
The upper stoxy which is defined by a wood belt course at three-quarter wall
height, features six long rectangular light over one light windows. O©On
the hip roof centered betwen the upper story windows is a gabled dormer with
a widely projecting overbhang. The 16 light rectangular dormexr is framed by
two squat wooden pilasters above which is vexticle wooden board siding with
chamfered ends creating a folk-like appearance. This work is reflected in
the overdoor on this first story. A sun room wing is placed on the west
facade, it features wide eaves.

E.F. Klienau was a Bloomington confectioner of German origin or descent.
As an active member of Bloomington's German community it is probable that
he commissioned Paul O. Moratz, Bloomington architect, who was also active
in the German community to design this house.

The house is well maintained and perhaps only the white paint is in

variance with the oxiginal intent.




Rueben M., Benjamin House

James F, and Lucy J. Koehler
1854 401 E, Grove
510 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
. John Routt, Architect/Buildex

21-04-416-012
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The Rueben Benjamin house is a two stoxy braced frame construction New

England side-hall house type. DBecause of the importance of Benjamiq)Routt
and its quality of axchitecture it was listed on the National Registex of

Historic Places in 1978.

The structure is a well presexrved example of a house type associated
with layout and detailing popularized by pre-civil war buildéf's guides,
The sidehall layout was developed on the east coast and was adopted as a
means of the economical ﬁse of space when building on a naxrow urban lot.

) This is definately a city house type.

The utilization of material is typi-

cal for the 1850's in Bloomington. Sills, studs, joists, and raftexs are
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local black walnut and siding, floox boards, doors, windows and mouldings
are of imported northern yellow pine. The framing is a transitional type
reflecting the move from heavy timber to balloon framing. Sills, corner

posts, and plates are heavy and feature new braces which a?e sectioned by
the wall studs.

The stxucture is massed as a rectangle with the gable facing the street
Behind this is a similar form of lower height which functions as the service
wing. The primaxry or south facade is a three bay composition, The first
floor features two windows with two over two lights. On the far left is
a double leaf door featuring a single light above the transom, This
entrance is approached by a newly constructed period porch. An ovex door is
suppoxrted by two console brackets which are placed above the door mouldings,
The doors were originally installed at 901 N. Main in Bloomington. The
primary decoration on the windows are classically inspired window cornices,
The three second story windows are identical to the first. The roof is
moderately pitched and in the gable center is placed a round window. The
roof frieze is wide and the roof has boxed cornice decorated with widely
spaced brackets. A one story bay window is on the west facade., General
changes to the reaxr have included removal and addition of various rooms and
porches on the rear. When the house was used as a duplex a downstair entry
had been created on the east facade, It has now been removed,

The house was built by John Routt who later became the last territorial
and first elected Govemor of Colorado in 1876, Mr., and Mrs. Rueben Moore
Benjamin moved into the house on October 10, 1856, Benjamin was born in
Columbia County, New York in 1833, attended Amherst College and came to
Illinois in 1856. Active as a lawyer, Benjamin was influential in creation

of the 1870 Illincis Constitution and became nationally known for his able



Rueben Benjamin House Page 3

argunents before the United States Supreme Court during the famous "Grange"
cases in 1874. His anti-monopoly pleadings set the groundwork for the
Interstate Commerce Commission. Benjamin later was a Professor of Law at
11llinois Weslyan University and was author of widely used law text books.
He died in 1917.

The house is presently undergoing extensive rehabilitation by the
present owners who have done much to save and enhance the buildings structux-
al and architectural integrity.

Scurce:

Walters, William Inventory of Historic Structures in McLean County




Anna Merrit Apartments Dennis and Sandra Brooks

c 1905 50 Whites Place
512~518 E.. Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect Unknown 21-04=416=013

The Anna Merrit Apartments is a four flat multi-family structure, frame
in construction and neo~classic in design. It has been sided with aluminum.

The structure, in form, is-two rectangles faced with bay windows separat-
ed in the rear by an air shaft and connected in the: front by the upper story
entrances. The two first story flats are approached by large porches which
are placedlat the far left and right on the primary facade, The upper story
flats are approached by a double poxch which is centered on the facade. All
porch columns are Doric. On the second story the cornice line is carxried

beyond the bay windows which create small porch-like constructions which
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are placed above the four entrance doors. The projecting cornice line is
carried by three columns also designed in the Doric order. Centered on

the two rectangular masses are two lowly pitched roof pediments with boxed
cornices. Between these is a lowly pitched hip roof which has a hipped
roofed, two window dormer. Fan lights a set in the roof pediments, On the
east and west facades are two story bay windows capped with roof pediments.
Large wooden verandas extend along the rear,

Mrs. Merrxit was a school teacher in the Bloomington 4th Waxd primary
schools. Among hexr students were Judge Homer Hall and Judge Louis Fitzhenry.
Mrs. Merrit undoubtably erected this building for hex own residence and to
supplement her meager income.

The building structurally is in fair condition. The out of sight, out
of mind philosophy upon which aluminum siding sales is based is reflected
in this structure. Those structural and decorative elements which have not
been entombed in aluminum are in bad need of maintenance. Columns, railings,
and porch floors are in need of repair and point. Porch skirtings are in s
some cases pushed in and are laying on the ground. Panes of glass in the
fan lights are broken out. Brick porch piers and the foundation in some
places is in need of tuckpointing. An unknown amount of damage is taking
place under the alumninum siding, A complete exterior restoration would
be easily accompliéhed bg removal of the siding and repair of all features

which have deteriorated.




Charity Adams House Harold F. Hill

c 1888 312 Felmly Drive
501 E. Grove Normal, IL
Architect Unknown 21~04-419-001

The Charity Adams house is a large two story frame house built on an

irregular plan, in a Queen Anne style., Application of asbestos siding ¢ 1950
destroyed much of its detailing. |

Set upon a brick foundation this house exhibits asymmetrical layout,
facade and roof typical of the Queen Amne pexiod. The primaxy facade is a
three bay front. The front has an L shaped veranda capped by a low hipped
roof with turned wooden posts. The veranda ends with a pedimented and project-
ing entry poxrch also supported by turned wood posts. The pediment is decorated

by a machine carved wing motif panel, Also centered on the facade is a double
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leaf door with a transomed light. 7To the left of the door is a small multi-
paned hall window. To the left is a large six light window which may have
had art glass panels. On the second story one over one light windows are
placed above the fixst story windows, The right hand window bay is carried
to completion by a attic story gable decorated with a small bisected rectangu~
lar window. This gable projects from the low pitched hip roof. Dominating
the roof is a tall corbeled brick chimney stack. The west facade features
a two story bay window centered on the facade and a side porch at the south
e;d. This poxch is oxiginal and has turned posts identical to those on the
primary facade., Other features on that facade remain on the attic stoxy.
They include a clipped corner, a gabled dormer and a complex double hip
inset in a gable which completes the bay window,

Charity Bishop Adams was born in Perry County, Ohioc in 1826 and married
Wiyett Adams, a farmer of Randolph Township in McLean County. She remained
on the farm until 1887, that was probably the date of hex husband's death,
She died in 1904. The house was perhaps built with the proceeds of the sale
of the farm on which she resided.

The house is in fair condition. From the relief of the asbestos siding
from the plain window. frames which appear to be original, it is possible that

most of the decorative clapboard and shingle expected to be found on this

type of structure remains,
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H.W. Kellgy House Joe Mittal

1906 22 Robinwood
503 E. Grove Noxmal, IL
A.L, Pillsbury, Architect 21=04-419~002

The H.W. Kelley house is a two stoxy clapboaxd frame structure. It is

built upon the American fouxr square plan, a popular layout for this type of
Arts and Crafts design house. The house: is in good condition.

The p;imary facade is essentially a symmetrical three bay front. Entrance
is provided under a wide veranda with an extremely low pitched bell cast roof.
This roof is suppoxted by three cinder-faced brick piers upon which aze set . ..
paired and square wooden colums. The columns appear to be inset into-the
facias; a decorative effect achieved by hollow flat stock brackets supporting

a flat stock extension of the facia, Asymmetry is found on the first story
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where the off center dooxr is arranged with a three leaf casement window.
The doox features a large beveled glass cameo light., It also slightly
projects from the facade which creates an interior air-lock, important for
noxrth facing entrances, The casement lights are leaded clear and colored
art glass designed in the craftsman style. On the right is a laxrge picture
window with a craftsman style leaded glass placed above the transom. The
second story facade is distinguished by a wooden belt course at three-
quarter wall height. Above the belt course are two windows whose sills are
created by the belt course, fhe whole is capped with a moderately sloped
hip roof featuring a slight bell cast at the eaves. Centered is a hipped
dormer with double windows. The eaves project widely and the soffit is
sloped.

Ho Walton Kelley was a traveling salesman for the Campbell-Holton Company,
wholesale grocers. He uﬁdoubtedly picked this location for its proximity to
three railroad passenger stations. Kelley was borxn in Heyworth, Illinois
in 1870, became Vice President of Campbell-Holton in 1917, and died in 1950,

A1l oxiginal architectural elements of this house are present, excluding
the roofing material. The primary facade was painted recently but the other
facades have peeling paint, The owner should be encouraged to paint and

warned against aluminum, vinyl or steel siding,



Rev. J.H. Gilliand House Joseph G, Mittal

c 1893 22 Robinwood
505 E, Grove Normal, IL

! Architect unknown 21=04=419-003

The Reverend J.H. Gilliand house is a two story frame, clapboard sided
structure in Queen Anne style design. It is a good example of the more
conservative type of this design and most of its decorative elements are
intact.

This structure, irregular and asymmetrical in foxm and layout presents
a three bay front on its primary facade. Entrance is provided thxough a
small, yet highly detailed poxch on the far left of the facade. The entxy
door faces west. It is uncertain whether this is its original position.

Porch decoration includes turned posts, newell and balisters. The poxch roof
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is highly pitched and features a applique décoration on the gable face of an
urn and flower motif. Centered on the first stoxy facade is a large fixed
glass window with a transomed lighf above., At the left of this is a one over
one light sash window. This story has a six inch to weather clapboard and
the window lintels axe decorated with bulls-eyes, Flat stock is used for
corner boards and a belt course between the first and second story windows,
On the second story four inch to weather clapboards are used and two sash
windows axe placed beneath the attic story gable. These windows are also
decorated with bullseyes, The roof is cross gable in form and on the primary
facade the gable is decorated with alternate coursings of diamond and fish
scale shingle. Centered in the gable four over four light double windows.

On the west facade the gable is identical and caps a two stoxry bay window,
Decorative brackets are placed where the bay undercuts the gable,

This house and the houses at 503 and 507 E, Grove ate situated on the
site of Connovers Academy. This female academy closed after the civil wax.
It apparently stood and was used as a residence until ¢ 1870. Reverend
Connover, the owner, retired from his pastorate in Lexington, Illinois in
1893 and it.is probably at this time that the land was cleared for these
buildings.

Reverend J.H. Gilliand was an active churchman with the Christian Chuxch
(Disciples of Christ). During his active work in this community he founded
the Second Christian and Centennial Christian Churches and raised funds to
build their structures. He died in 1922,

The house is in good condition and is simply in the need of a coat of

pa.in‘t -




Eugene Funk House Kenneth and Donna L. Mann

c 1895 507 E. Grove
507 E., Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect Unknown 21~-04~-419-004

The Eugene Funk house, if this analysis is correct, is a very late

example of a Queen Anne style house, It is a two story clapboard sided
frame exhibiting features associated with structures of the previous decade.
1t is a very well presexved house.
Essentially symmetrical this two bay front house with irregular plan
is approached through an L shaped porch which maintains its oxiginal dntxict-
1y detailed decoration, which are in excellent condition. The lowly pitched
hip porch roof is suppoxted by turned posts. The porch facia has small brackets
and larger brackets connect it to the posts. Above the entxy stairs are two

connecting brackets with pendant which creates an axrch—like appearance.
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Connecting to the right of the porch is a front projecting two story gabled
wing. Centered on this on the first story is a large fixed window with a
transomed light. This window lintel is decorated with a bulls-eye and

floral motif, as are all most other windows and the front dooxr, The first
and second stories are distinguished by the use of larger siding and corner
boards and the first and the belt course between the two stories made from
moulding and projecting siding courses. The upper story openings are placed
above the first, The attic story is composed of a hip with gables projecting
over the primary facade wing and a two story bay window on the west facade.
On the primary facade the gable is decorated with fish scale and diamond
shingle, Centered in the gable is a large rectangular fixed light surrounded
by small square lights. Above this is a decorative panel, The gable cornice
is boxed and has high relief moulding. At the eaves ié closely spaced brackets
on a plain soffit and facia.

At the rear is a brick and frame urban barn in excellent condition., It
is the best example of this type of structure in Bloomington,

Eugene Funk (b 1867 - d 1944), grandson and heir of Isaac Funk, an eaxly
settler and landowner, is best known for his contributions in the developmenf
and distribution of hybrid seed corn. Funk was important in using scientifis
cally based research to improve the quality of yeilds in the corn dominated
midwest,

This house and barn are in a state of excel;entipieservation. It is
obviously well cared for and apparently evexy effort has been made to preserve

its distinguishing axchitectural features,




George Brand House Donna L, Mann

c 1886 507 E. Grove
509 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Henry Miner, Architect (7) 21=04-419-005

The George Brand house is a two story frame house layed out in an

Italianate plan but detailed with Eastlake inspired features. Green
asbestos siding and modern poxches detract from its original appearance,
Built as a three bay front with side-hall entrance the first story is
completelylobscured by a glass enclosedusun porch or room and a small entry
porch., Above this are three one over one light window sash. The attic
story is the only exterior paxt of the structure which maintains any
integrity. The truncated hip roof features a boxed cornice and wide facia

which is decorated with one-quarter wheel spoked bracket made of fret woxk,
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Centered on the primary facade is a gabled wall dormer with a recessed double
window, A gable screen is made of a half wheel fret work design panel,
supported by two brackets. On the west facade attic story a gabled wall
doxmer feature boxed cornice and brackets with the eave decoration carried
beneath the gable creating the effect of gable returns,

George Brand in 1880 had hired Henxry Miner, a local planning mill
operator and axchitect to prepare plans for a house to be built on the 400
block of East Grove, This structure was never built. Perhaps the out of
period design for this building can be attributed to the fact that the plans
were at least six or seven years old,

Geoxge Brand was born in Wurtemburyg, Germany in 1829 and came to this
country in 1845. While living in Ohio he apprenticed to a cabinet maker
and relocated in Bloomington in 1854, opening shop as a furniture maker.
This business expanded with Brand ceasing the manufacture of furniture and
concentrating on retail trade. He died in 1895 leaving his business with
his son George F, Brand.

Although it is structurally in sound condition, from a historical view-
point, the house little resemﬂles the structure which Brand had erected. It
is difficult to estimate how much of the original exterior wall material
remains under the asbestos siding. Documentation for any restoration plans

could be soundly based in the excellent photo of the house which was published

in Bloominqton-Illuatrated, 1889,




Hadden Clinic ' Edward A, and Ivey Weaver

c 1954 American State Bank Tr ASB 535
511 E, Grove 1242 E, Empire
Axchitect Unknown Bloomington, IL

21-04-419-014
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The Hadden Clinic is a two story commercial structure exrected by
Dr. Harold Hadden, a foot specialist. It is out of chaxacter for the entire
neighborhood and was undoubtedly built before zoning was particularly enforced,
The Brunery/Reibsame house which sits immediately behind this structure was
moved to open this lot c 194%.

Because this structure is anomolous and non-contributing to the distzxict

being considered, a description of the premises is not needed,




A,J. Messing House

Darrel Hartweg and
c 1910 William Sulaski
Centex
Bloomington, IL
21-04-435-007

602 E. Grove 306 N,
Architect Unknown

The A.J. Messing house is a two story stuccoed brick structure. In
consideration of its detailing it could be. considered California Mission
Style, although it is an overlay on a coloﬁial revival floox plan. It is
in fair condition.

The exterior walls of this center hall structure are soft baked local
brick covered with stucco. Bntrance is provided through a wide veranda of
brick and frame construction. Piers at either end of the veranda xise to

the reiling height, are capped with stone from which rise two square piers
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which are themselves capped with stone and form a half round axch which is
a continuation of the pier., Between these piexs span a low and graceful
axrch which gives the structure its California Mission signature. At the
center of the arch a laxge oval and cruciform decoxation in wood is inset
in a step and half round false gable. The primary facade is a three bay
composition. The center bay, which projects, houses the front entry door
which has recessed side lights. The flanking bays have large one over one
light windows and stone sills. The second story windows are the same except
the centex, which is double. The attic story features a low pitched gabled
roof with a centered wall dormer capped with a gable composed of steps,
quarter rounds and half xounds. The east and west facades have symmetrical
window placement of identical construction of the primary facades, the wide
projeciing eaves and cornice xeturn,

The house is similax in layout to 502 E, Grove and similar in foxrm and
layout to 605 E, Grove,.

A.J. Messing was a Rabbi and a teacher at Illinois Wesleyan when this
house was built.

The structure is in fair condition, needing stucco repair., Because of

n

apartments it is probable that much interior detailing has been lost.




Lucius T. Wilcox house C. Steve Pampel

1893 R, Thomas Fogler
604 E, Grove 202 E. Front

) Architect Unknown Bloomington, IL
21=04-435«008

primty
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The Lucius T. Wilcox house is an excellent example of Queen Anne
architecture. It is a two story frame structure of irregular form and plan.
It is sided with clapboard., The structure is in good condition and all
decorative work excluding porch rail ballisters appeaxr to be intact.

The primary facade is composed. of a four bay front. Essentiallwv
asymmetrical in appearance and rich in detailing, the irregulax plan is
expressed by the use ofltowers, multi-story bay windows, oriels, and off-
center positioning of major structural components. Entrance is made through

an L shaped porch which features a low. pitched projecting pedimented gable
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over the stairs. The gable face is decorated with stamped sheet metal shingle.
Poxch posts are high relief turnings. Spindle work is used in wooden eave
curtains, Under the gable this is.worked to create a graceful axrch. The
window headers on this story are decorxated.with appliqued wooden bullseyes.

The second story, divided from the first by a projecting clapboard
belt course, is expressed by the multiplane surfaces formed from the bay
windows and it features a small porch which is decorated with two semi-circu-
lar wooden curtains. The attic story is dominated by a pedimented gable
which overhangs one half of the front facade except in the area occupied by
the corner bay. The underside of the pxojection is decorated by long thin
eave brackets. The gable face in which is place two windows is decorated
with decoxative shingle work. Competing for attention as the structure's
cap is a small gale with a window and a tail conical tower roof which is
slightly bell cast,

The structure is in good condition, the only noticeable problem being
the front porch which has apparently settled, Attempts to correct this
problem has left the roof and porch columns jacked away from the column
bases. The porch roof on one side in being supported by three laxge boaxds.

Lucius T. Wilcox was a dry-goods merchant, His store was located in
downtown Bloomington, As a measure of his success he took out a building
permit for the structure in 1893 for a house to cost $5,000. He also
employed Cyrenius Russell to fxrescoe the interior.

Source:

"Bloomington Daily Pantagraph May 12, 1897
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Charles Stephenson House
c 1903

606 E, Grove
Architect Unknown 21-04-435=009

Margaret Bonson
606 E, Grove
Bloomington, IL
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fhe Charles Stevenson house is a rectangulax plan, two story frame

structure originally designed in the plain, late Victorian style. It has

been altered at least twice, once in the 1920's by the addition of a rear

two story wing containing an automobile garage and in the post World War II

period by siding with asbestos shingle ovexr the oxiginal clapboard.

The first story primary facade is dominated by a veranda which extends

across the entire front. This is an original feature for the fretwork poxch

skirting. which undexrlies the veranda appears to date from the period of

construction. The veranda has been entirely enclosed by large one over one
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light windows. The date of this enclosure is unknown.

The second stoxry shows the three bay front intent of the original design
and fully one-third of the facade to the left is recessed to serve as a
porch. The porch detailing is intact and features turned spindle balusters,
turned wooden columns and scallops., The attic story is dominated by a large
pedimented gable, the upper third of which projects slightly. At this
projection is found small'brackets. Centered on the lower two thirds is a
triple window with one over one light sash. The gable is faced with decora-
tive shingle. This gable is crossed by two side gables, Window mouldings
throughout the structure are plain.

Charles Stephenson who was associated during his active business life
with Campbell Holton & Co., a local wholesale grocexy company was born in
Heywoxrth, Illinois in 1874. By 1894 he was working in the wholesale field
and joined Campbeil Holton in 1907, He died in 1955, A son of his in 1939

was associated with J. Walter Thompson Advertising Company of New York City.




Judge Sain Welty House Richard Nice

c 1888 Ronald Wyce
610-612 E. Grove 203 S, MclLean
Architect Unknown Bloomington, IL

21-04-435-010

The Judge Sain Welty house is a tall two story brick structuxe of
irregulaxr plan of late Victorian design. Alterations made between 1896 and

1901 caused removal of a large front porch and the addition of a small room.




Judge Sain Welty house Page 2

to the first story. This work was probably done to convert the structure
into a duplex.

Essentially three bay in composition, the primaxry facade is plain and
is dominated by large transomed windows centered on the first and second
stories. On the east is a two-and-a-half story rectangular bay window., The
bay features narwow and tall one over one sash windows on the short walls
and on the long wall at the first story is another large transomed window.
Entrance is gained through double leaf single glazed 16 panel doors.

The tall and rectangulax nature of the entire composition is broken at
the attic stoxy where is found a gable. Contained in the gable is a triple
window which features nine over one sash. Offset from the gable is a half
hexagonal doxmexr, the base of which is decorated with feathered shingle,

It is roofed with a low pyramid like structure. The bay window at the attic
Story contains a triple window at the long wall. The tall pyramid roof, the
eaves of which are bracketed, is shingled with slate. The rest of the roof
is shingled with composition roofing. The facia is highly unusual being
constructed in a panel and rail method and having two courses of panel
designed in a brick like manner.

Painting of the brick walls has obscured certain decorative elements.
At least two colors of brick are used on the strxucture. Some of the color
variation may, however relate to the turn of the century remodeling. Basket
weave pattern brick panels are found at the eaves and in places between the
first and second stories. Stone is used in the structure foxr a water table, . -
window sills and headers. The concrete entrance steps'are of an unknown
date. |

Judge Sain Welty was born in Somerset, Chio in 1853. He attended |

Illinois Weslyan University, graduating in 1881 and Yale University, graduating
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in 1883. At Yale he graduated at the head of his class and won the Marshall
Jewel Prize.. He moved to Bloomington in 1883 and became law partners with
John Sterling who was later to serve this €ongretional District in the U.&.

House of Representatives. Welty was elected Judge of the Circuit Court in

McLean County. He died in 1920.
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Samuel Denton House Lewellyn Jones

c 1929 614 E. Grove
6l4 E. Grove : Bloomington, IL
Architect Unknown 21=04~435-010

The Samuel Denton house is a framed cube with cinder faced brick

veneer typical of the style of structure known as an Amexican Foursquare.
It is surprising that a structure of this type of design typical of a pexiod
15 years previous, was built as late as 1929,
The primaxry facade is composed of two bays. On the. first story entrance
v
is gained through a semi~circulax toppgd door. This is. enhanced by a large
semi~circulax overdoor which features two horizontal wings. The whole is

supported by plain console brackets. The single window has fouxr over one

lights and features a projecting header course sill and soldier course headex,
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On the east is an enclosed porch with identical window sash. The second
story windows are placed above the first story openings. At the sill level
runs a belt course of header laid bxick. Small limestone cubes are placed
at the cornexs of this course, The xoof is a pitched hip and has wide
projecting sloped eaves. Centered at the primary facade is a low gabled
dormer with projecting eaves. The dormer face has an attic vent set into
it. A satelite disk on the west caps the whole,

Samuel Denton was the manager of the Denton Drug Company in 1929-1930.



Logan Perry House Wwilliam M, Partridge

c 1916 601 E, Grove
601 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
) Axrchitect Unknown 21.-04~439~001

=

MO~

The Logan Perry house is a one~-and-a-half stoxy framed structure cover-
ed with stucco. American Bungalow in design, it is typical of the type of
bouse built from purchased plans obtained either mail oxder or thxough a
lumber yaxrds

The primary facade is a three bay front with a centered door and two
flanking windows. The deep veranda dominates the facade. It is composed
of four large limestone capped cinder faced brick piexrs from which rise
the four support columns. The outer columns are massive in appearance and

the inner columns which flank the stairs are relatively spindly in appearance.
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These columns suppoxt a long elipsoid porch roof facia, The stairs have
large cinder faced brick stoops which are capped with limestone. The pozxch
skirting is made of lattice work and the porch railings and ballisters are
rectangulaxr,

Centered to the rear of the low sloping porch roof is a laxge dormer,
It is decorated with false half~timbering and centered in it is a double
window. These windows are one over one sash as are all the windows in the
structure. The half story is formed by a low pitched gable and it has widely
projecting eaves with a plain facia but no soffit. The side walls of the
house rise from a cinder faced brick foundation above which is a wooden
watertable. The walls are stuccoed,

Logan Perry was in the investment and bond business, located in downtown

Bloomington, He died in 1968,
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Ellis/Bodell House Roger B. and Sue R, Wells

c 1855/c 1916 206 Grandview Drive
603 E. Grove Normal, IL
Axchitect Unknown 21-04~-439-002

The Ellis/Bodell house is a two story framed New England sidehall house

which was heavily remodeled in 1916. Situated on a parcel of land which
comprised the parcels for 601 and 603 B, Grove. It was apparently moved to
allow for the construction of 60l E. Grove. It is in poox condition.

Its: original appearance would have been similar to the Ruben M. Benjamin
house at 510 B. Grove but much of the detailing of that period has been
removed in the Bodell pexriod (¢ 1916) and a post World War II remodeling.

A New England sidehall design it retains its rectangular form, a three bay

primaxy facade, Italianate style classical window and door mouldings, and a
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curved transom light over the front door.

In 1916 remodeling the house was moved onto a foundation made of large
shale paving brick. The brick mason who laid the foundation was allowed a
touxr de force in his construction of the L shaped veranda which replaced a
veranda which was only on the primary facade. This new poxch is huge,
starting from corbeled bases nine large square piers rise approximately
eight feet and are capped with limestone. Supporting the veranda are shoxrt
wood columns, Poxch skirting and railings are also worked with shale pavers,

Other features altered in the 1916 remodeling include three large
craftsman style brackets at the roof eave which probably replaced a console
style bracket. Side lights at the front door were also installed, These
are two color.leaded glass and feature a pleasing Arts and Crafts period
motif,

Jessee Ellis the earliest known resident of this structure operated a
hat store in downtown Bloomington in 1855, He died in 1868. Reverend
William Bodell was an evangelist who operated on a state wide basis. Boxn
in 1863 he was associated with the Presbyterian church later in his life.

The decidedly amateuxish nature of the front porch design and the fact
that the structure was moved to a much narrower lot suggests a volunteexr
effort to create the 1916 remodeling of the house. Reverend Bodell died in

1945,




Samuel Crawford House John P, and Lillian P, Duetech

¢ 1911 301 E, Fxont
605 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect Unknown 21~04=-439~002

The Samuel Crawford house is a two siory masonry structuxe. In design

it is a California Mission style overlayed on a Colonial Revival plan. As
such it closely resembles the A.J. Messing house at 602 E,.Grove; The two
structures are undoubtedly designed by the same person who, at this point
in tdime, is unknown.

The primary facade is composed of three bays. This arrangement is
reflected in the porch where entrance is made through the centex of a three
bay arranged porch. Although the poxch is frame it has been stuccoed to

match the remainder of the structure, The four poxch piexs flare to quarxter
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round tops which suppoxt the large parapet of the porch. The parapet decora-
tion is composed of a semi~circular projection the face of which is decorated
by an oval and crucifoxm inlay of wood., The parapet slopes down from this
projection to exterior cornex piers. The front door is situated on a pro-
Jecting center bay and has large one over one light sash flanking it., On

the second story this arrangement is maintained but the center bay features

a double window with one over one sash. At the attic story' the projecting
bay ends as a hipped roof wall dormer with a fixed four light sash centered
in it. This dormexr projects from a moderated pitehed gabled roof, Eave
returns on the gable ends, an exteriox chimney, and the general symmetry

of composition lend the structure its colonial associations.

Crawford huilt the structure in 1911 for his retirement,




Young/Pexrrigo House Mary A, Jones

¢ 1855/1904 RR #2, Charterwood
609=-611 E. Grove Bloomington, I
) Unknown/A.L., Pillsbury 21~04~439=004
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The Young/Perrigo bouse is a New England side hall type house similax

to 510.E, Grove which was enlarged to a multi-family structure by an addi-
tion designed by a local architect. This clapboard sided structure was
originally intended to be a duplex but is now in fouxr ox more units, Struct-
urally it appearé to be in good condition.

The primary facade is composed of a five bay front; three associated
wifh the ¢ 1855 structure and two associated with the 1904 structure.

! Entrance to the two parts is gained through a double poxch which divides by
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a set of double columns which arxe flanked on their respective ends by large
Square recessed panel.columns. The columns rise from three brick piers
capped with clapboard sided bases. The Pillsbury designed addition on the
left has two bays which have a door and two windows on the first story and
one single and one double window on the second story. The roof to this part
is a low pitched hip with a bay dormexr offset on the roof,

. Dxr, P.G. Young was born in Virginia in 1810 and came to Bloomington in
1848 accompanied by his wife and six children. Young was not a medical
doctor but rather was a diagnosing pharmacist and advertized his business
widely. By 1850 he was also serving as a preacher and maintained both
professions up to the civil war, The house had a variety of occupants up to
_189l'when Mr. and Mrs. Charles Perrigo obtained the structure. Upon the
death of Mr, Perrigo, Mrs. Perrigo had the building expanded, undoubtedly

to provide her with secure income in a period without government social

programs,
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Frank D. Marquis House Timothy and Victoria Dietsch

1888 1861 Longway Court
613 E. Grove Cincinnati, Ohio
Architect Unknown 21-04-439-005

)

The Frank D. Marquis house is a two story frame structure of late

Victorian period design. Because of the heavy coverage of aluminum siding
it is difficult to ascertain the original design concept although it probably
closely resembled 507 E. Grove.

The house has a twocbay primary facade. On the first story the porch
is the only”deféil’keft intact. It features a shingle roofed gable with‘a
sunburst aééiéh in the gabléJEaCe. The whoié'is supported by Squaré columns
and on the sides has wooden eave curtains of spindle work. The window has a

triple sash with a large center and two flanking sash. An upper story window

has an art glass transom. The structure is- topped. with a cross gabled roof,
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steeply pitched which maintains its original slating. The aluminum siding
apparently covers much intact original siding and shingling.

Frank Marquis was president of Peoples Bank.




Augustus Elbe House Mr, and Mrs. James P. Russell
c 1882 702 E, Grove

702 E. Grove Bloomington, Lk
Architect Unknown 21 ~04-436-007
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The Augustus Elbe house is a large two story frame structure designed
in the Queen Anne style. Its wall surfaces and window and doox mouldings
have been covered with aluminum siding.

Because of the residing it is difficult to assess the original design
emphasis. It can be s;fely said that it has a three bay primaxy facade.
The structure is dominated by a large rounded tower with a conical roof.
The résidiné has left the towers relationship to the house similar to a

silo and barn. Beneath the siding undoubtedly lies a very beautiful house.

Other features of note are front doors, poxch columns, eave and facia detail-
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ing and gable barge boards and panels.
Augustus Elbe was a German born Jewelexr who was doing well enough in

the 1880's to build a house costing $4,500.




First M.E. Parsonage Harold Walters

1888 P.C. Box 760
704 E. Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect - George Miller 21-04-436-008

S

The First M.E. Parsonage is a two story frame structure so severely
altered from its originally designed appearance that it barely falls into
the purpose of this suxrvey. It should suffice to say that of the house
George Miller designed only the roof line temains. The structure cost
$3,500 to build and was used as a parsonage for the First Methodist Church.
Frank Crane, the widely published inspirational writex, lived hexre when
preaching in Bloomington.

Source:

Bloomington Weekly Pantagraph July 27, 1888




John F, Heffernan House Robert G..Russano

c 1892 706 E. Grove
706 E. Grove Bloomington, IL
) Architect Unknown 21-04-436-009
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The John F. Heffernan house is a two story frame structure built in a

Queen Anne design, It has been altered by a front porch which dates latex
than the remaining structure. The structure has aluminum siding over
stucco. The stucco was probably applied over the original clapboard and
decorative shingling typical of this style structure. The first renovation
probably occurred c 1915,

The primary facade has a three bay front with the center projecting
bay on the first story holding the entrance. The entryv way features a

] segmented axch transomed light above double leaf eight panel doors. Flanking
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the entry are large one over one light sash. The second story has three
identical windows centered in the three bays. At the attic story the center
bay forms a gabled wall dormer and is flanked on the left by a truncated
tower with a pyramidal roof. The roof is in essence a cross gable type
but is asymmetrical by suggestions of gambrels, towers, and gables project-
ing above the attic stoxy.

John Heffernan was a civic leader, active in politics. He died in

1921. The second Boy Scout camp in this locale was named for him.




Robert McElvaine House Anna Workman

c 1892 1403 Mayfaixr Road
710 E. Grove Street Champaign, IL

) Axchitect Unknown 21-04-436-010

The Robert McElvaine house is a modest late Victorian structure of a

type described as a Princess Anne by Old House Journal publisher Clem Labines
It is a two to one-half stoxry frame structure covered with aluminum siding.
Its design is perbaps a stock plan published for national use and sold
either mail order, or through a local lumber yard.

Entrance to the house is gained through a straight side stair onto a
porch which dates ¢ 1920. Aluminum siding covers most of the historic
material, although it can be seen that on this three bay structure window

mouldings were plain. All windows are one over one sash and are set singly
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except a double window in the projecting full second floor bay on the primary
facade.
I+ is said that this structure is the house which the Roland family

lived in during the time they started their store in downtown Bloomington.




J. Pexxy and Minnie Osnowitz

Dr. W.A, Eider House
¢ 1855 Tr. 5089
712 E. Grove RR#13, Box 104
Architect Unknown Bloomington, IL
: 21-04-436-011
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The Dr. W.A. BElder house was built sometime between 1853 and 1855.

It is a two story frame structure which features an oxriginal front wing

pbuilt in a side hall arrangement. The structure has an extensive history

of additions being made to it, the most recent and major one dating ¢ 1905.
As a three bay front the primary facade maintains an appearance typical

of the side hall housz. Its front door is to the left and on the right are

two symmetrically placed windows. These windows have four over one sash

)
and plain mouldings. The upper stoxy has three openings directly above the
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lower but a door has been added to permit access to the upper story porch.
The two level porch generally obscures the facade although because of

other changes to this c 1855 structure the porch does not detract from it.
It is supported by three large tapered wooden posts. This system is dupli-
cated at the upper story where the posts support a porch roof. On both
levels ballisters are made of flat stock wood. Perhaps the most unique
aspect of this structure is the apparent lack of a deep foundation. The
only other structure in the district (418 E. Grove) with this feature also
dates from this period.

Because of numerous changes to the rear wings only a thorough physical
examination would allow a dating of their sequence of development.

Dr. W.A. Elder was born in Watertown, New York in 1826. He moved at a
young age to Missouri where he studied medicine at the University of Missouri
where he graduated in 1847. His stay in Missouri is perhaps responsible for
the appearance of this house for it closely resembles a house type built in
the "Little Dixie" area of that state known as a stacked house. Dx. Elder
came to Bloomington in 1852 and established a practice as a physician and

surgeon. He died in 1895,




George Cox House

1886

701 E. Grove

George Millexr, Architect

Jane Lee

701 E. Grove
Bloomington, IL
21-04-440-001

Because of the superb nomination to the National Register to Histoxic

Places prepared by the owner Jane Lee and because the information required

in a nomination to the National Register closely parallels the information

being presented in this survey Ms. Lee's narrative is used.

"This two and a half story Queen Anne style brick and frame residence

with attic stands on the south east coxner of Grove and Clayton Streets.

Six wide curved limestone steps rise to a three-quarters circulaxr wrap-

around entrance porch. Curved wooden porch railings are suppoxted by

balusters turned in a highly figured design.

The circular poxch roof,
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supported by turned wooden columns, rises gently to a small circular balcony
with a decorative railing. Behind this facade is an octagonal tower, 15' in
diameter, rising to a height of more than 40' from the ground. At the half-
story level, there are stained glass windows on the four completely visible
sides of the tower. The tower roof is a slightly belled octagonal dome. To
the immediate right is a laxrger, partially enclosed and recessed balcony
whose réiling echoes that o0f the smaller, lower balcony. A gable over the
larger balcony is finished with false half~-timbering. An ornamental brick
chimney shaft rises beyond this roofline.

The body of the house consists of six different sized rectangles set
together asymmetrically in three projecting wings, producing a total of
twelve bays. The overall dimensions of the house are approximately 30' X
70! on a relatively small lot, 70! X 125'. The foundation and first story
are constructed of dark red brick, trimmed with limestone and decorative
brickwork. The second, half-story and attic levels are of various types of
shingles and clapboard, currently painted dark buff. Thexre are three
porches, three chimneys, and a large number of decorative elements, includ-
ing dormers and an oriel. Slate gray shingles cover the original ridged
and hipped T-shaped slate roof. There is a narrow cemented driveway but
no outbuildings. The lot is developed into lawn, with flower gaxdens on
all sides of the housef The house has decoratively bordered sidewalks, tall
trees, strips of lawn, wide stone steps to Grove Street and stone curbing
separating it from the asphalt covered brick streets.

George H. Cox was a descendant of David Cox, an early settler in
Bloomington Grove in 1826, Cox had come from Ohic, and his livelihood was
farming and stockraising. The Cox family was prestigious and one of the

oldest in Bloomington.
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George H. Cox was the Secretary-Treasurer and General Manager of the
Hungarian Roller Mill Company, a prominent westside landmark of Bloomington,
owned by his brother Thomas J. Cox. George was also a business partner of
William Hasenwinkle, with whom he owned a flour mill and othex business
interests. He was a board member of the Corn Belt Bank and a leader of the
First Presbyterian Church. He married and had two children, at least one

of whom, Herman, attended a local college."
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Elijah Horr House William J. Phillips

c 1886 305 Grant Road
703 E. Grove Bloomington, IL
Henry A. Miner -~ Architect ? 21-04~440-002

The Elijah Hoxx house is a two story frame structure of a rectangular

plan. It is neaxly identical to 709 and 711 E. Grove and also 310 E, Walnut
Street in Bloomington. Henxy Minex was the designer of the Walnut Street
house and the existence of many other structures of this plan in Bloomington
argues for a single plan, marketed locally with much of the mill work supplied
locally. Henry Miner was also the_operatorﬁpf a large planning mill.

Entrance to the house on the primany.facéde is through a large L
shaped porch which dates c 1925. The porch is enclosed with screen. The

left bay provides an original entrance. Much of the original wall detailing
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is underneath asbestos siding which dates post World War II. Window mouldings
remain and have bullseye decorated lintels and bullseye decorated corner
blocks. Wooden eave curtains decorate a bay window on the west facade. The
roof structure is a truncated hip with two gables. Eave and soffit is cover-
ed with a 45 degree diagonal trimboard which is figured. Both gables have
window vente, have decorxated trim boards and decorative shingle work., The
house is in apparently good structural conditioh.

Elijah Horr was born in Denmark, New York in 1826. At the age of 10
he was brought to Bloomington by A.C. Washburn one_of the earliest teachers
in the community. He became successful being at various times a farmer,
mercantilist, and President of the Thixd National Bank of Bloomington. He
also served on the building committee of the 1868 McLean County Courthouse.

Hoxxr died in 1895.




Kersey Fell House Charles E. Mitchell

Pre-1855 1506 Northbrook, Unit 101
705-707% E. Grove Normal, IL
| Architect Unknown 21-04-440-003

The Kersey Fell house is a large two story house which was perhaps

originally built as a duplex. At the time of this report's writing (Fall,
1985) its distinguishing 19th century characteristics are being.removed
through: application of aluminum siding. The destruction of this house's
‘
architecture by this means only undersco;es the necessity to preserve this
neighborhooq from further thoughtlessness.
The housé was originally ciapbéafd sided and presents on its primary

facade a five bay front. It was, perhaps, originally a New England side

hall house with a wing to the east. Thexe are presently three entrances on
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the primary facade. Besides the work presently underway certain remodeling
was done c¢ 1905, in 1890 and perhaps earlier. The c 1905 remodeling left
the house with a double porch supported by round wooden columns. Window
trim was also cbanged on the first story. Original pre-1855 detailing
existed as wide pilastér boards, eave brackets and wide renaissance inspired
wooden window mouldings. The gable window had a superb window and vent axxange-
ment with a pedimented cornice and flat wall brackets dominant.

Kersey Fell was born in Chester County, Pennsylvania in 1815 and came
to Bloomington, at the urging of his brother Jesse in 1836. He passed his
I1linois Bar Exam in 1841 and maintained an active practice until 1856 when
political organizing became his prime interest. Fell was one of the organiz-
ers of the National Republican Party, was a Fremont delegate at the 1856
National Convention. In 1860 he was part of the Illinois coalition which

put Abraham Lincoln into the presidency. He died in 1893.




Parker Bros. Lumber Co. House I J. Michael and Sally A. Payne

1883 R.,R. 2
709 E, Grove Bloomington, IL
Architect - Henxy Miner 21-04-440-004
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The Parker Brothers Lumber Company House I is a two story frame structure
of a rectangular plan. It is nearly identical to 703 and 711 E. Grove Streets
and also 310 E. Walnut Street in Bloomington. Henry Miner was the designer
of the Walnut Street house and the existence of mény other structures of this
plan in Bloomington argues for a single plan marketed locally, wifh much of
the millwork supplied locally. Henry Minerx was also the operator of a large
planning mill. As late as 1889 Parker Bros. Lumber had contractors Ziegler
and Ferre erect a house on East Front Street and at 607 E. Front another

structure of the same plan as 703, 709 and 711 E. Grove stands.,
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The structure has a three bay primary facade with entrxance on the right
bay. It has a vestibule built out from the wall at the front door undoubtedly
to provide protection from this areas prevailing northern wintex winds. The
vestibule structure has been paneled over. At the left is a large fixed glass
transomed window. It is uncertain as to whether that is an original element.
The entire house, save the front gable has been covered with aluminum siding.
That gable shows a fanciful immitation half-timber design.

The city directories recoxd numerous occupants to the structure and by
1907 George Parker, of the lumberyard family, resided there. The structure
cost $3,500 to construct in 1883.

Source:

Bloomington Weekly Pantagraph October 12, 1883
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The Parker Brothers Lumber Company House 11 is a two stoxry frame structure

of a rectilinear plan. It is nearly identical to 703, 709 E. Grove Streets

and 310 E. Walnut Street in Bloomington. Henry Miner was the designer of the

Walnut Street house and the existence of many other structures of this plan
in Bloomington argues for a single plan marketed locally with much of the
millwork supplied locally. Henry Miner was also the operatox of a large
planning mill.

The structure has a three bay primary facade with entrance gained

through a vestibule on the right bay. This vestibule is constructed in a




Parker Bros. Lumber Co. House Il Page 2

rail and panel technique and feature side lights and large diamond lights

on the side walls. Porch columns are constructed from rock-faced concrete
block indicating a c 1900 date for the sleeping porch which dominates the
second story facade. The house has its original clapboard siding. Other
features are bullseye decorated lentels and corner biocks on the windows.

The roof structure is a truncated hip with gables and eaves are boxed
diagonally with decoratively figured material. The gables are also decorat-
ed.

The house was built in 1883 at a cost of $3,500.




800 and 900 East Grove Street

As part of the original survey the 800 and 900 blocks of Eaét Grove
Street were surveyed in the field and historical researph conducted concern-
ing the structures on those blocks. It was concluded that although some
historical and/or. architectural resources exist on those blocks they were
not closely related to the general theme of the 200 through 600 blocks,

Essentially the 800 and 900 blocks are mixed residential and business
sections. There are laige parking lots, contemporary buildings, historic
buildings and older buildings barely recognizable as to their historical
periods and most of the other buildings have been sided in inappropriate
products. For this reason these structures are not within the boundaries of
the proposed Grove Street historic district.

However to give some idea of the structures on those blocks the follow-
ing is provided. It is not the intent of the author of this report to
comment fully upon each structure as is provided in the balance of the report.
It is his intention to provide some of the more interesting and salient facts
concerning those properties.

802 E. Grove The John Wycoff house was built c 1894. It is Queen Anne in

design and has its upper stories covered with aluminum siding. A front
porch is of uncertain date.

808-810 E. Grove This commercial structure has parts to it which may date

back to 1880. It is originally associated with Dr. M. Kopf a physician who
used hydro~-therapy treatment.

812 E. Grove This structure dates as early as 1867. It was apparently the

first structure used by Dr. M. Kopf.

814 E. Grove According to Alice Schlenker of Bloomington this structure

was originally sited at the south east corner of Washington and Robinson
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and that it was known as the old Robinson place. It has been so severaly
altered that it is nearly impossible to say anything about it by\its structur-
al appearance.

816-818-820 E. Grove This set of three two flat structures were made in

1924 by the moving and rebuilding of Harwood Lumber Company sheds. The work
according to an unknown source was done undex the direction of Bloomington
architect Paul O. Moratz. From the general appearance this statement could
well be true, |

801 E. Grove This c 1924 commercial structure was built to serve as an auto

repair facility.

803-803%-805-805% E. Grove These four structures were all built ¢ 1910 in

the design known as American Foursquare. This type of house is common in
this community although the coursed siding on 803 is particularly well done
and is expressive of the Arts and Crafts movement which spawned it.

813 E. Grove The A.B. Ives house was built ¢ 1857. It is a good example

of a Victorian pattern book cottage. It would be eligible for inclusion to
the National Register of Historic Places on its architectural mexrits if the
existing aluminum siding was removed.

815 E. Grove The Sanford Robinson house is an I type house and was built

c 1855. It is in poor condition.

E. Grove This is a one story brick structure attached to 817 E. Grove.

1+ dates ¢ 1927.

817 E. Grove This two story brick structure was built c 1905 for commercial

and residential purposes. It is nicely preserved,

819 E. Grove The Reinholt Graf Grocery building was constructed ¢ 1873, It

is in poor condition.
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IC Railroad Freighthouse This structure dates ¢ 1880 and was built in the

EBastern stick style. The modexrn doors detract from its appearance.






